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NOTICE 

NOTICE is hereby given that the 39
th
Annual General Meeting of the Members of YORK EXPORTS 

LIMITED will be held on Thursday, 30
th
.day, of September, 2021 at S-115, Shakarpur, Delhi- 92 at 

9.00 a.m., to transact the following business:  

ORDINARY BUSINESS: 

1. ADOPTION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

To receive, consider and adopt the Directors' Report, the Auditors' Report and the Audited 
Balance Sheet and Profit and Loss Account together with Schedules and Cash Flow Statement of 
the Company for the year ended 31st. March, 2021.  

2. APPOINTMENT OF DIRECTOR 

To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Aayush Dhawan (DIN 00277485) who retires by rotation and 
being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.  

3. APPOINTMENT OF AUDITORS 

To consider and if thought fit to pass with or without modification(s), the following Resolution as an 
Ordinary Resolution:- 

―RESOLVED that pursuant to the provisions of Section 139, 142 and all other applicable 
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules 
2014 as may be applicable and pursuant to the recommendations of Audit Committee M/s 
RAKESH MAHAJAN & ASSOCIATES., Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No.011816N) 
be and are hereby re-appointed as Statutory Auditors of the Company to hold office from the 
conclusion of 39th Annual General Meeting (AGM) until the conclusion of the 40

th
. Annual General 

Meeting  (AGM), as per the Provisions of the Companies Act 2013, at such remuneration as may 
be agreed upon between  the Board of Directors and Statutory Auditors, in addition to the 
reimbursement of GST and actual out of pocket expenses incurred in relation with the audit of 
accounts of the Company.‖ 

SPECIAL BUSINESS: 

4. To consider and if thought fit, to passwith or without modification(s), the following 
Resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:- 

`RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 196, 197, 198 read with Schedule V of 
the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made there under, and other provisions of the Act, if any 
[including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in force], and 
in accordance with the approval of the Board and approval of the Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee of the Board of the Directors of the company, consent of the members of the Company 
be and is hereby accorded by way of Ordinary resolution for increase in remuneration to Mr. 
Aayush Dhawan at Rs, 1,90,000/- per month w.e.f. 01.04.2021 for the remaining period of his term 
of five year‘s appointment.  

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company or any Committee thereof 
be and is hereby also authorized to amend, alter, modify or otherwise vary the aforesaid terms and 
conditions/ or remuneration of Mr. Aayush Dhawan, Whole time Director of the Company from time 
to time. 

5. To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following 
Resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:- 

`RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the applicable provisions the Companies Act, 2013 [including any 
statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in force] and in accordance 
with the approval of the Board and approval of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of 
the Board of the Directors of the company, consent of the members of the Company be and is 
hereby accorded  for the Change in designation of Mr. GIAN CHAND DHAWAN from Managing 
Director to Chairman of the company w.e.f. 01.04.2021 for a period of five years.‖ 

6. To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following 
Resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:- 
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`RESOLVED THAT in supersession of the earlier resolution passed by the Board in its meeting 
dated 01.10.2019 and members in their meeting dated 30.09.2019 and pursuant to the provisions 
of Sections 196, 197, 198 read with Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made 
there under, and other provisions of the Act, if any [including any statutory modification(s) or re-
enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in force], and in accordance with the approval of the Board 
and approval of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Board of the Directors of the 
company, consent of the members of the Company be and is hereby accorded by way of Ordinary 
resolution for appointment of Mr. ASHWANI DHAWAN as Managing Director  of the company 
w.e.f. 01.04.2021 for a period of five years at a monthly remuneration of Rs.2,50,000/-. 

 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company or any Committee thereof 
be and is hereby also authorized to amend, alter, modify or otherwise vary the aforesaid terms and 
conditions/ or remuneration of Mr. Ashwani Dhawan, Managing Director of the Company from time 
to time. 

By Order of the Board  

For York Exports Ltd. 

Place: New Delhi  

Dated: 01.09.2021 

(Aayush Dhawan) 

      Whole time Director 

 DIN NO. 00277485 

697, Vishvamitter Street, 

Cemetery Road, Civil Lines, Ludhiana - 141001 

 

NOTES: 

1. A Member Entitled to Attend and Vote at the Meeting is entitled to appoint a Proxy to Attend and to 
Vote Instead Of Himself, And a Proxy Need Not Be a Member. Proxies In Order To Be Effective 
Must Be Duly Filled, Stamped, Signed And Deposited At The Registered Office Of The Company 
Not Less Than Forty Eight (48) Hours Before The Commencement Of The Meeting. The Blank 
Proxy Form Is Enclosed 

2. The Corporate Members are requested to send to the Company a duly certified copy of the Board 
Resolution authorizing their representative to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting. 

3. The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of the Company will be closed from Friday 
24

th.
 September, 2021 to Thrusday30

th
. September, 2021 (both days inclusive). 

4. In compliance with the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 20 of the 
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, the Company provides members 
facility to exercise their right to vote at the 39

th.
 Annual General Meeting (AGM) by electronic 

means and the businesses may be transacted through e-Voting Services provided by Central 
Depository Services (India) Ltd. The e-voting details are enclosed along with the Annual Report.  

5. Members desirous of seeking any information concerning the accounts and operations of the 
Company are requested to address their queries to the Company Secretary, at the Registered 
Office at least ten days in advance of the meeting, so that the information, to the extent 
practicable, can be made available at the meeting.  

6. The members, who have not registered their e-mail addresses so far, are requested to register the 
same in respect of electronic holdings with the depository through their depository participants. 
Members who are holding shares in physical form are requested to get their e-mail addresses 
registered with the Registrar & Transfer Agent, M/s Beetal Financial and Computer Services Pvt. 
Ltd. 
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7. The Shareholders are requested to notify change of address, if any, immediately to the Registrar & 
Transfer Agent, M/s Beetal Financial and Computer Services Pvt. Ltd, New Delhi, mentioning their 
Folio Number. 

8. Hard Copies of the annual reports will not be sent. You are therefore, requested to download the 
same from our website www.yorkexports.in or register your email id with registrar or company. 

9. Annual accounts and related documents referred to in the accompanying Notice and the 
Statement are open for inspection by the members at the Registered Office of the Company. 

10. Electronic copy of the Notice of the 39
th 

Annual General Meeting of the Company inter alia 
indicating the process and manner of evoting along with Attendance Slip and Proxy Form is being 
sent to all the members whose email IDs are registered with the Company/Depository 
Participants(s) for communication purposes. 

11. Notice of the 39
th.

Annual General Meeting and the Annual Report for 2020-21 will also be available 
on the Company‘s website www.yorkexports.in for their download. The physical copies of the 
aforesaid documents will also be available at the Company‘s Registered Office for inspection 
during normal business hours on working days. For any communication, the shareholders may 
also send their request to the Company‘s email id: admin@yorkexports.in 

12. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) has taken a ―Green Initiative in the Corporate 
Governance‖ by allowing paperless compliances by the companies. Your company has joined the 
MCA in its environmental friendly initiative. The company would send documents such as Notice of 
the General Meetings, Annual Report and other communication to its shareholders via electronic 
mode to the registered e-mail addresses of shareholders. To support this green initiative of the 
Government in full measure, shareholders are requested to register/update their latest e-mail 
addresses with the Depository Participants (D.P) with whom they are having Demat Account or 
send the same to the company via e-mail at: admin@yorkexports.in or to RTA at 
beetalrta@gmail.com. We solicit your valuable co-operation and support in our endeavor to 
contribute our bit to the environment. 

13. SEBI has mandated the submission of Permanent Account Number (PAN) by every securities 
market participant. Members holding shares in electronic form are therefore requested to submit 
their PAN to the DP with whom they maintain their demat accounts. Members holding shares in 
physical form should submit their PAN to M/s. Beetal Financial & Computer Services (P) 
Ltd/Company. 

14. In compliance with the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of 
the companies (Management and Administration) rules, 2014 as amended from time to time and 
regulation 44 of Listing Regulations, Members have been provided with the facility of ―remote e-
voting‖ (e-voting from a venue other than place of Annual General Meeting) on resolutions 
proposed to be considered at the ensuing Annual General Meeting. The facility of casting the 
votes by the members using an electronic voting system from a place other than venue of the 
AGM (―remote e-voting‖) will be provided by Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL). 
The facility for voting through ballot paper shall be made available at the AGM and the members 
attending the meeting who have not cast their vote by remote e-voting shall be able to exercise 
their right at the meeting through by ballot paper.    

15. The company has appointed M/s Reecha Goel & Associates, Company Secretaries as the 
Scrutinizer to scrutinize the e-voting process and ballots at AGM in a fair and transparent manner. 

16. The results of evoting and physical voting by ballots at venue of AGM will be declared by the 
chairman of the meeting not later than two days of the meeting 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

http://www.yorkexports.in/
http://www.yorkexports.in/
mailto:beetalrta@gmail.com
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Annexure-1 

The instructions for shareholders voting electronically are as under: 

(i) The voting period begins on 27 day of September 2021 at 10.00 AM (IST) and ends on 29 day of 
September 2021 at 05.00 PM (IST). During this period shareholders of the Company, holding 
shares either in physical form or in dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date (record date) of 
23.09.2021 may cast their vote electronically. The e-voting module shall be disabled by CDSL for 
voting thereafter. 

(ii) Shareholders who have already voted prior to the meeting date would not be entitled to vote at the 
meeting venue. 

(iii) Pursuant to SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated 09.12.2020, under 

Regulation 44 of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, listed entities are required to provide remote e-voting facility to 
its shareholders, in respect of all shareholders‘ resolutions. However, it has been observed that 
the participation by the public non-institutional shareholders/retail shareholders is at a negligible 
level.  

Currently, there are multiple e-voting service providers (ESPs) providing e-voting facility to listed 
entities in India. This necessitates registration on various ESPs and maintenance of multiple user 
IDs and passwords by the shareholders.  

In order to increase the efficiency of the voting process, pursuant to a public consultation, it has 
been decided to enable e-voting to all the demat account holders, by way of a single login 
credential, through their demat accounts/ websites of Depositories/ Depository Participants. Demat 
account holders would be able to cast their vote without having to register again with the ESPs, 
thereby, not only facilitating seamless authentication but also enhancing ease and convenience of 
participating in e-voting process. 

(iv) In terms of SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated December 9, 2020 on e-
Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in demat 
mode are allowed to vote through their demat account maintained with Depositories and 
Depository Participants. Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and email Id in 
their demat accounts in order to access e-Voting facility. 

(v) Pursuant to above said SEBI Circular, Login method for e-Voting for Individual shareholders 
holding securities in Demat mode CDSL/NSDL is given below: 
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Type of 
shareholders 

 Login Method 

 

Individual 
Shareholders 
holding 
securities in 
Demat mode 
with CDSL 

1) Users who have opted for CDSL Ease / Easiest facility, can login through their 
existing user id and password. Option will be made available to reach e-
Voting page without any further authentication. The URL for users to login to 
Ease / Easiest are https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/login or visit 
www.cdslindia.com and click on Login icon and select New System Myeasi. 

2) After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able to see the e-Voting 
option for eligible companies where the e-voting is in progress as per the 
information provided by company. On clicking the evoting option, the user will 
be able to see e-Voting page of the e-Voting service provider for casting your 
vote during the remote e-Voting period. Additionally, there is also links 
provided to access the system offal e-Voting Service Providers i.e. 
CDSL/NSDL/KARVY/LINKINTIME, so that the user can visit the e-Voting 
service providers‘ website directly. 

3) If the user is not registered for Ease/Easiest, option to register is 
availableathttps://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/Registration/EasiRegistration 

4) Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing Demat 
Account Number and PAN No. from a e-Voting link available 
on  www.cdslindia.com home page or click on 
https://evoting.cdslindia.com/Evoting/EvotingLoginThe system will 
authenticate the user by sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email as 
recorded in the Demat Account. After successful authentication, user will be 
able to see the e-Voting option where the e-voting is in progress and also able 
to directly access the system of all e-Voting Service Providers. 

https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/login
http://www.cdslindia.com/
https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/Registration/EasiRegistration
http://www.cdslindia.com/
https://evoting.cdslindia.com/Evoting/EvotingLogin
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Individual 
Shareholders 
holding 
securities in 
demat mode 
with NSDL 

1) If you are already registered for NSDL IDeAS facility, please visit the e-
Services website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: 
https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. 
Once the home page of e-Services is launched, click on the ―Beneficial 
Owner‖ icon under ―Login‖ which is available under ‗IDeAS‘ section. A new 
screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID and Password. After 
successful authentication, you will be able to see e-Voting services. Click on 
―Access to e-Voting‖ under e-Voting services and you will be able to see e-
Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider name and 
you will be re-directed to e-Voting service provider website for casting your 
vote during the remote e-Voting period   

2) If the user is not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is 
available at https://eservices.nsdl.com.  Select ―Register Online for IDeAS 
―Portal or click   at https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp 

3) Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following 
URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a 
mobile. Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon 
―Login‖ which is available under ‗Shareholder/Member‘ section. A new screen 
will open. You will have to enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit demat 
account number hold with NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verification Code as 
shown on the screen. After successful authentication, you will be redirected to 
NSDL Depository site wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on company 
name or e-Voting service provider name and you will be redirected to e-Voting 
service provider website for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting 
period. 

Individual 
Shareholders 
(holding 
securities in 
demat mode) 
login through 
their 
Depository 
Participants 

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account through your 
Depository Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility.  After 
Successful login, you will be able to see e-Voting option. Once you click on e-
Voting option, you will be redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site after 
successful authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting feature. Click on 
company name or e-Voting service provider name and you will be redirected to e-
Voting service provider website for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting 
period  

  

 

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget 
User ID and Forget Password option available at abovementioned website. 

 

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical issues related 
to login through Depository i.e. CDSL and NSDL 

 

 

 

 

 

https://eservices.nsdl.com/
https://eservices.nsdl.com/
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
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Login type Helpdesk details 

Individual Shareholders holding securities 
in Demat mode with CDSL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact 
CDSL helpdesk by sending a request at 
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.comor contact at 022- 
23058738 and 22-23058542-43. 

 

Individual Shareholders holding securities 
in Demat mode with NSDL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact 
NSDL helpdesk by sending a request at 
evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at toll free no.: 1800 1020 
990 and 1800 22 44 30   

(vi) Login method for Remote e-Voting forPhysical shareholders and shareholders other than 
individual holding in Demat form. 

1) The shareholders should log on to the e-voting website www.evotingindia.com. 

 

2) Click on ―Shareholders‖ module. 

 

3) Now enter your User ID  

 

a. For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID,  

b. For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits Client ID,  

c. Shareholders holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number registered with the 
Company. 

 

4) Next enter the Image Verification as displayed and Click on Login. 

 

5) If you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to www.evotingindia.com and voted on 
an earlier e-voting of any company, then your existing password is to be used.  

 

6) If you are a first-time user follow the steps given below: 

 For Physical shareholders and other than individual shareholders holding shares 
in Demat. 

PAN Enter your 10digit alpha-numeric *PAN issued by Income Tax Department (Applicable 
for both demat shareholders as well as physical shareholders) 

 

 Shareholders who have not updated their PAN with the Company/Depository 
Participant are requested to use the sequence number sent by Company/RTA or 
contact Company/RTA. 

Dividend 
Bank Details 

OR Date of 
Birth (DOB) 

Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date of Birth (in dd/mm/yyyy format) as recorded in 
your demat account or in the company records in order to login. 

 If both the details are not recorded with the depository or company, please enter 
the member id / folio number in the Dividend Bank details field. 

 

mailto:helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com
http://www.evotingindia.com/
http://www.evotingindia.com/
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(vii) After entering these details appropriately, click on ―SUBMIT‖ tab. 

 

(viii) Shareholders holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the Company selection 
screen. However, shareholders holding shares in demat form will now reach ‗Password Creation‘ 
menu wherein they are required to mandatorily enter their login password in the new password 
field. Kindly note that this password is to be also used by the demat holders for voting for 
resolutions of any other company on which they are eligible to vote, provided that company opts 
for e-voting through CDSL platform. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with 
any other person and take utmost care to keep your password confidential. 

 

(ix) For shareholders holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for e-voting on the 
resolutions contained in this Notice. 

 

(x) Click on the EVSN for York exports limited on which you choose to vote. 

 

(xi) On the voting page, you will see ―RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION‖ and against the same the option 
―YES/NO‖ for voting. Select the option YES or NO as desired. The option YES implies that you 
assent to the Resolution and option NO implies that you dissent to the Resolution. 

 

(xii) Click on the ―RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK‖ if you wish to view the entire Resolution details. 

 

(xiii) After selecting the resolution, you have decided to vote on, click on ―SUBMIT‖. A confirmation box 
will be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on ―OK‖, else to change your vote, click 
on ―CANCEL‖ and accordingly modify your vote. 

 

(xiv) Once you ―CONFIRM‖ your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote. 

 

(xv) You can also take a print of the votes cast by clicking on ―Click here to print‖ option on the Voting 
page. 

 

(xvi) If a demat account holder has forgotten the login password then Enter the User ID and the image 
verification code and click on Forgot Password & enter the details as prompted by the system. 

 

(xvii) Additional Facility for Non – Individual Shareholders and Custodians –For Remote Voting 
only. 

 Non-Individual shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodians are 
required to log on to www.evotingindia.com and register themselves in the ―Corporates‖ module. 

 A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the entity should be 
emailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com. 

 After receiving the login details a Compliance User should be created using the admin login and 
password. The Compliance User would be able to link the account(s) for which they wish to vote 
on. 

 The list of accounts linked in the login should be mailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com and 
on approval of the accounts they would be able to cast their vote.  

 A scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attorney (POA) which they have issued in 
favour of the Custodian, if any, should be uploaded in PDF format in the system for the scrutinizer 
to verify the same. 

http://www.evotingindia.com/
mailto:helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com
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 Alternatively Non Individual shareholders are required to send the relevant Board Resolution/ 
Authority letter etc. together with attested specimen signature of the duly authorized signatory who 
are authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer and to the Company at the email address viz; 
admin@yorkexports.in, if they have voted from individual tab & not uploaded same in the CDSL e-
voting system for the scrutinizer to verify the same. 

 

PROCESS FOR THOSE SHAREHOLDERS WHOSE EMAIL/MOBILE NO. ARE NOT REGISTERED 
WITH THE COMPANY/DEPOSITORIES. 

1. For Physical shareholders- please provide necessary details like Folio No., Name of shareholder, 
scanned copy of the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self attested scanned copy of PAN 
card), AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of Aadhaar Card) by email to RTA at 
beetalrta@gmail.com 

2. For Demat shareholders -, please update your email id & mobile no. with your respective 
Depository Participant (DP) 

3. For Individual Demat shareholders – Please update your email id & mobile no. with your 
respective Depository Participant (DP) which is mandatory while e-Voting. 

Explanatory Statement Pursuant to Section 102 of Companies Act, 2013 

Item No. 4 

Mr. AAYUSH DHAWAN is a promoter director of the company. He belongs to a reputed industrialist 
family of region. He is looking after the day to day affairs of the company including finance, marketing, 
quality of production and competitive strategies etc. He has business acumen and thus is suitable for 
this designation. Sh. AAYUSH DHAWAN was re-appointed as Whole-time director of the company 
w.e.f.  1

st
 October, 2019 for a further period of 5 years at a monthly remuneration of Rs. 1,50,000 /- . 

Keeping in view the progress of the company and on the basis of recommendations of Nomination 
Committee and subject to approval of members,  the Board has decided to increase his remuneration 
to Rs. 1,90,000/- p.m. w.e.f. 01.04.2021 for the remaining period of his current tenure. 

Board of Directors recommends the resolution for the consideration and approval by the shareholders.  

Besides Mr. AAYUSH DHAWAN to whom this resolution relates, Mr. GIAN CHAND DHAWAN and Mr. 
Ashwani Dhawan being the relatives of Mr. AAYUSH DHAWAN are interested in this resolution. 

Besides them none of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their relatives 
is concerned or interested, financial or otherwise, in the said resolution. 

Item No. 5 

Sh. Gian Chand Dhawan is a promoter director of the company. He belongs to a reputed industrialist 
family of region. Sh. Gian Chand Dhawan was appointed as Managing Director of the company for a  
period of 5 years at a monthly remuneration of Rs.1,25,000/- including perquisites, if any in 
accordance with provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 w.e.f. 01-07-2019 for a period of 5 years. 
Keeping in view the age factor and health problems Mr. Gian Chand Dhawan has shown his 
unwillingness to continue as Managing Director of the company and the Nomination committee has 
recommended to change the designation of Mr. Gian Chand Dhawan from Managing Director to 
Chairman. The Board has also given its consent for the same subject to approval of members 

The Board of Directors recommends the resolution for the consideration and approval by the 
shareholders.  

Besides Sh. Gian Chand Dhawan to whom this resolution relates, Mr. Ashwani Dhawan and Mr. 
Aayush Dhawan being the relatives of Sh. Gian Chand Dhawan are interested in this resolution. 

Besides them none of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their relatives 
is concerned or interested, financial or otherwise, in the resolution. 

Item No. 6 

Mr. ASHWANI DHAWAN is a promoter Director of the company. He belongs to a reputed industrialist 
family of region. He is looking after all the day to day affairs of the company. He has business acumen 
and thus is suitable for this designation. Sh. ASHWANI DHAWAN was appointed as Whole-time 
Director of the company w.e.f. 1

st
 October, 2019 for a period of 5 years at a monthly remuneration of 
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Rs. 2,00,000 /- including perquisites, if any in accordance with provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. 
As Mr. Gian Chand Dhawan has resigned as Managing Director of the company, so the Nomination 
Committee has recommended to appoint Mr. Ashwani Dhawan as Managing Director of the company 
w.e.f. 01.04.2021 at a monthly remuneration of Rs. 2,50,000/- for which Board has given its consent 
subject to the approval of the members of the company. 

The Board of Directors recommends the resolution for the consideration and approval by the 
shareholders.  

Besides Mr. ASHWANI DHAWAN to whom this resolution relates, Mr. GIAN CHAND DHAWAN and 
Mr. AAYUSH DHAWAN being the relatives of Mr. ASHWANI DHAWAN are interested in this 
resolution. 

Besides them none of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their relatives 
is concerned or interested, financial or otherwise, in the said resolution. 

By Order of the Board  

For York Exports Ltd. 

 

 

(Aayush Dhawan) 

       Whole time Director 

 DIN NO. 00277485 

697, Vishvamitter Street, Cemetery Road, Civil Lines, 

 Ludhiana - 141001 

Place: New Delhi 

Dated: 01.09.2021 
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INFORMATION PURSUANT TO THE CORPORATE GOVERNANCE UNDER THE SEBI (LISTING 
OBLIGATIONS AND DISCLOSURES REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS 2015, REGARDING 
DIRECTOR SEEKING RE-APPOINTMENT IN THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING. 

Name of the Director Aayush Dhawan (DIN 00277485) 

Date of Birth 29-10-1987 

Date Of Appointment 29-10-2005 

Expertise in Specific functional area Having Rich experience Technically and Administratively n 
the in the field of Knitted Garments. 

Qualification Graduated from Babson College, USA 

Directorship of other companies 1. York Oil and Fats Private Limited 

2. York Infrastructure Pvt.Ltd. 

3. York E-Retail Pvt.Ltd. 

4. Nature Light Solar Power Pvt.Ltd. 

Chairman/Member of Committees of 
other companies 

NIL 

No. Of Shares held 165400 

Relationship with other Directors Son of Managing Director Sh. Ashwani Dhawan and 
Grandson of Chairman cum Director Sh. Gian Chand 
Dhawan 
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BOARD‟S REPORT & MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

To, 

The Members, 

Your directors have pleasure in presenting their 39
h
 Annual Report on the business and operations of 

the company together with the Audited Statement of Accounts for the year ended 31st March, 2021. 

The summarised financial performance of the company is as under: 

(Rs. in Lacs.) 

State of Company‟s Affairs and Future Outlook 

Company is operating under single segment that is textile manufacturing. 

During the year under review, the company has achieved a sales turnover of Rs.2045.64 Lacs as 
compared to Rs. 2493.85Lacs for the previous year. The company has however earned profits of Rs. 
8.21 Lacs after tax as compared to Rs. 34.32 for the previous year. 

Dividend 

The Company has no proposal to declare dividend during the year. 

Amounts Transferred to Reserves 

The company has not transferred any amount to Reserves. 

Changes in Share Capital 

The paid up Equity Share Capital as on March 31, 2021 was Rs. 336.28 Lacs During the year under 
review the company has not issued any shares or any convertible instruments. 

Extract of Annual Return                                     

The extract of Annual Return, in format MGT-9, for the Financial Year 2020-21 is attached with this 
report. 

Number of Board Meetings 

During the year under review Board of Directors met Nineteen times (19) and there was one meeting 
of independent directors of the company, the details of which is mentioned/given in Corporate 
Governance Report. The provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and listing agreement were adhered to 
while considering the time gap between two meetings. 

Particulars Current Yr. Previous Yr. 

Turnover ( Including Exports Incentives) 2045.64 2493.85 

Other Income 4.39 9.15 

Profit/(loss) before Depreciation and Taxation  72.98 107.70 

Less: Provision for Depreciation 61.77 67.38 

Profit/(Loss) before taxation 11.21 40.32 

Less: Provision for Taxation 3.00 6.00 

Profit/(Loss) after tax 8.21 34.32 

Add: Balance B/F from the previous year 50.91 19.50 

Add: Transferred from General Reserve -- -- 

Add: Transferred from Export Profit Reserve -- -- 

Add: Re-measurement gain/(loss) on defined benefit plan 1.95 (2.37) 

Add/(Less): provision of Taxation for earlier Year (0.70) (0.54) 

Balance carried to Balance Sheet 60.37 50.91 
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Particulars of Loan, Guarantees and Investments under Section 186 

The company has not given any loan or given guarantee for loans taken by others from banks or 
financial institutions during the year. The company has not invested any amount during the year. 

HUMAN RESOURCES 

The well-disciplined workforce which has served the company for three decades lies at the very 
foundation of the company‘s major achievements and shall well continue for the years to come. The 
management has always carried out systematic appraisal of performance and imparted training at 
periodic intervals. The company has always recognized talent and has judiciously followed the 
principle of rewarding performance.   

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

All contracts / arrangements / transactions entered by the Company during the financial year with 
related parties were in the ordinary course of business and on an arm‘s length basis. The Board of 
Directors has adopted Related Party Transaction Policy and the same is available on following link 
http://www. http://www.yorkexports.in/financial-results/policy/related%20%20party%20transactions.pdf 
Further all the necessary details of transaction entered with the related parties as defined under 
Section 188 of the Companies Act, as defined under Section 2 (76) of the said Act are the part of 
notes to the financial statements provided in this annual report. However, there were certain related 
party transactions in terms of regulation 23 of the SEBI (listing obligations and disclosure 
requirements) regulations, 2015 which were entered into on an arm‘s length basis and were in the 
ordinary course of business. 

There are no materially significant related party transactions made by the Company with Promoters, 
Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or other designated persons which may have a potential conflict 
with the interest of the Company at large. 

Conservation of Energy, Technology, Absorption, Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo 

The details of Energy, Technology, Absorption, Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo stipulated 
under section 134(3)(m) of the Companies act, 2013 read with rule 8 of the Companies (Accounts) 
Rules , 2014, is annexed. 

Details of Subsidiary, Joint Venture or Associates 

The company has no subsidiary; Joint Ventures However the company has an associate company 
named York Oil & Fats Pvt.Ltd.   

Risk Management Policy 

Although the company has long been following the principle of risk minimization as is the norm in 
every industry, it has now become a compulsion. Therefore, in accordance with clause 49 of the 
listing agreement the Board members were informed about risk assessment and minimization 
procedures after which the Board formally adopted steps for framing, implementing and monitoring 
the risk management plan for the company. The main objective of this policy is to ensure sustainable 
business growth with stability and to promote a pro-active approach in reporting, evaluating and 
resolving risks associated with the business. In order to achieve the key objective, the policy 
establishes a structured and disciplined approach to Risk Management, in order to guide decisions on 
risk related issues. In today‘s challenging and competitive environment, strategies for mitigating 
inherent risks in accomplishing the growth plans of the Company are imperative. The common risks 
inter alia are: Regulations, competition, Business risk, Technology obsolescence, Investments, 
retention of talent and expansion of facilities. Business risk, inter-alia, further includes financial risk, 
political risk, fidelity risk, legal risk. As a matter of policy, these risks are assessed and steps as 
appropriate are taken to mitigate the same. 

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM AND THEIR ADEQUACY 

The Company has adequate system of internal control to safeguard and protect from loss, 
unauthorized use or disposition of its assets. All the transactions are properly authorized, recorded 
and reported to the Management. The Company is following all the applicable Accounting Standards 
for properly maintaining the books of accounts and reporting financial statements. The internal auditor 
of the company checks and verifies the internal control and monitors them in accordance with policy 
adopted by the company.  

http://www.yorkexports.in/financial-results/policy/related%20%20party%20transactions.pdf
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VIGIL MECHANISM / WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY 

In order to ensure that the activities of the Company and its employees are conducted in a fair and 
transparent manner by adoption of highest standards of professionalism, honesty, integrity and ethical 
behavior the company has adopted a vigil mechanism policy. This policy is explained in corporate 
governance report and also posted on the website of company. 

REAPPOINTMENT OF INDEPEDENT DIRECTORS  

There is no re-appointment of independent directors during the period under review 

DIRECTORS & COMMITTEES 

In accordance with the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 Sh. Aayush Dhawan (DIN: 00277485), 
Director retires by rotation and being eligible offers himself for re-appointment.  Sh. Gian Chand 
Dhawan was appointed as Managing Director of the company but his designation changed to 
Chairman and Sh Ashwani Dhawan is proposed to be appointed as Managing Director subject to 
approval of the members. 

.The respective resolutions for their appointments are placed before the members in ensuing Annual 
General Meeting. 

BOARD EVALUATION 

Pursuant to the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and Applicable regulations of SEBI (listing 
obligation and disclosure requirements) regulation, 2015 , the Board has carried out annual 
performance evaluation of its own performance, the directors individually as well the evaluation of the 
working of its Audit, Nomination & Remuneration and Stakeholder committee. The manner in which 
the evaluation has been carried out has been explained in Corporate Governance Report. 

REMUNERATION POLICY 

The Board has, on the recommendation of the Nomination & Remuneration committee framed a 
policy for selection and appointment of Directors, Senior Management and their remuneration. The 
Remuneration Policy is stated in the Corporate Governance Report. 

DEPOSITS 

The Company has not accepted any deposits during the year and no deposits remained unpaid or 
unclaimed as at the end of the year under review and there has been no default in the repayments of 
deposits.   

AUDIT COMMITTEE 

The company has constituted the audit committee and has the following Chairman and members: 

Mr. B.B.Jain                 : Chairman and Independent Director 

Mr. Anil Bansal            : Member and Independent Director 

Mr. Ajay Puri                : Member and Independent Director 

Smt. VeenaVahi          : Member and Independent Director 

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE 

The company has constituted Nomination and Remuneration Committee and has the following 
Chairman and Members: 

Mr. B.B. Jain        : Chairman and Independent Director 

Mr. Anil Bansal    : Member    and Independent Director 

Mr. Ajay Puri        : Member    and Independent Director 
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Smt.Veena Vahi          :  Member and Independent Director 

Mr. Ajay Puri              :  Member and Independent Director 

DIRECTORS‟ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT 

To the best of their knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations obtained 
by them, your Directors make the following statements in terms of Section 134(3) (c) of the 
Companies Act, 2013: 

a) That in the preparation of the annual financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021; the 
applicable accounting standards have been followed along with proper explanation relating to 
material departures, if any; 

b) That such accounting policies as mentioned in Notes to the Financial Statements have been 
selected and applied consistently and judgment and estimates have been made that are 
reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company as 
at March 31, 2021 and of the profit of the company for the financial year ended 31

st
 March, 2021. 

c) That proper and sufficient care has been taken for the maintenance of adequate accounting 
records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets 
of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities; 

d) That the annual financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis; 

e) That proper internal financial controls were in place and that the financial controls were adequate 
and were operating effectively. 

f) That systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws were in place and 
were adequate and operating effectively. 

DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS 

The Company has received declaration of Independence from Sh. Bharat Bhushan Jain, Smt. 
VeenaVahi, Sh. Anil Kumar Bansal and Sh. Ajay Puri that  the Independent Directors meet the criteria 
of independence as laid down under Section 149 (6) of the Companies Act, 2013. 

SEXUAL HARASSMENT PREVENTION 

York Exports Limited has implemented Prevention, prohibition and redressal Act, 2013 in its entirety 
regarding the sexual Harassment of women at workplace. Internal Complaints Committees as per the 
provisions of the act have been constituted at corporate and works offices of York exports limited. 

Summary of sexual harassment issues raised, attended and dispensed during the year 2020-21:- 

No of complaints received in 2020-21 -NIL- 

No of complaints disposed off -NIL- 

No of cases pending for more than 90 days -NIL- 

No of workshops or awareness programme against sexual harassment 
carried out 

1 

Nature of action taken by the employer or District Officer -NIL- 

AUDITORS 

 STATUTORY AUDITORS 

M/s Rakesh Mahajan & Associates, Chartered Accountants (ICAI Firm Registration No. 011816N) 
was appointed as the Statutory Auditors for the financial year 2020-21 in the 38th AGM to hold office 
till the conclusion of 39th AGM. M/s Rakesh Mahajan & Associates., hold office only up to the date of 
ensuing Annual General Meeting. The Board has again decided to re-appoint them for the Period of 
one year from Financial Year 2021-22 subject to approval of the members at the ensuing Annual 
General Meeting. So the appointment of M/s Rakesh Mahajan & Associates., Chartered Accountants, 
(Firm Registration No. 011816N) is proposed as the Statutory Auditors of the company for FY2021-
22. 
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Your Company has received written consent(s) and certificate(s) of eligibility in accordance with 
Sections 139, 141 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules issued 
there under (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) for the time being in 
force), from M/s Rakesh Mahajan & Associates, Chartered Accountants (ICAI Firm Registration No. 
011816N 

 SECRETARIAL AUDITORS 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and The Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Company has appointed 
Reecha Goel & Associates (CP No.:6562, FCS: 7012),Company Secretaries to undertake the 
secretarial audit of the company. The Secretarial Audit Report is annexed. 

 INTERNAL AUDITORS 

Sh. Sonu Sharma has been appointed as an Internal Auditor of the company under section 138 of 
Companies Act, 2013 to conduct internal audit of functions and activities of the company 

Explanation to Auditor‟s/Secretarial Auditors remarks                       
With regard to Audit reports no observation/qualification is given by the auditors. 

 Cost Audit 

The provisions of maintenance cost records and cost audit are not applicable to company  

SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS 

During the year under review, No Order has been passed. 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

As per applicable regulations of SEBI (listing obligation and disclosure requirements) regulation, 2015 
with the Stock Exchanges, a separate section on corporate governance practices followed by the 
Company, together with a certificate from the Company‘s Statutory Auditor confirming compliance 
forms an integral part of this Report.  

Declaration by Managing Director that the Board Members and KMPs have complied with the Code of 
Conduct. 

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY 

Though the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 regarding Corporate Social responsibility are not 
attracted to the company yet the Company has been, over the years, pursuing as part of its corporate 
philosophy, an unwritten CSR policy voluntarily which goes much beyond mere philanthropic gestures 
and integrates interest, welfare and aspirations of the community with those of the Company itself in 
an environment of partnership for inclusive development. 

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES 

The information required pursuant to Section 197 read with Rule 5, of The Companies (Appointment 
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 in respect of employees of the Company is 
as follows: 

The company has one Managing Director and the remuneration paid to him is Rs. 22.00 Lacs per 
year only. 

The particulars of the employees who are covered by the provisions contained in Rule 5(2) and rule 
5(3) of Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 are NIL 

The remuneration paid to all Key management Personnel was in accordance with remuneration policy 
adopted by the company. 

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENT, IF ANY, AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF 
THE COMPANY 

There are no material changes or commitment during the period under review affecting the financial 
position of the company. 
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FINANCIAL VIABILITY OF COMPANY 

The company has not defaulted in repayment of dues to financial institutions, banks and not given any 
guarantee for loans taken by others from banks or financial institutions during the year 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS 

The company has been very well supported from all quarters and therefore your directors wish to 
place on record their sincere appreciation for the support and co-operation received from Employees, 
Dealers, Suppliers, Central and State Governments, Bankers and others associated with the 
Company. Your Directors wish to thank the shareholders for their continued support and cooperation. 
We look forward to receiving the continued patronage from all quarters in the years to come. 

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT 

The statements contained in the Board‘s Report and Management Discussion and Analysis contain 
certain statements relating to the future and therefore are forward looking within the meaning of 
applicable securities, laws and regulations. Various factors such as economic conditions, changes in 
government regulations, tax regime, other statues, market forces and other associated and incidental 
factors may however lead to variation in actual results. 

 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

 

 

Ashwani Dhawan                Aayush Dhawan 

                                                                                          Managing Director          Whole time Director 

 DIN: 00264986                  DIN: 00277485                        

 

Place: New Delhi 

Dated: 01.09.2021 
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Annexure I 

ANNEXURE TO DIRECTORS REPORT 

Information as per section 271 (I) (e) read with the Companies (Disclosure of Particulars in the Report 
of Board of Directors) Rules, 1988 and forming part of the directors report for the year ended 31

st
 

March, 2021. 

A. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY 

Your company always remained conscious to conserve the energy and has attempted measures for 
the same wherever possible in order to achieve the reduction in the cost of production.  

The total energy consumption as per Form-―A‖ is enclosed. 

B. TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION 

Efforts made towards technology absorption are as under: 

1) Research and Development 

The company has made continuous efforts for the development of new lines of activities and 
modernization of the existing process of manufacturing. The Company is adopting the most suitable 
manufacturing technology for saving in the cost of production, electricity consumption and personnel. 

2) Technology Absorption, Adaptation and Innovation 

The Company is adopting the well- established technology with the scope of savings in the cost of 
production, energy consumption and capital cost in terms of the quantum of production. The Company 
is making continuous efforts towards the product development, product improvement in the shape of 
quality and cost reduction. 

 

FORM-A 

 

FORM OF DISCLOSURE OF PARTICULARS WITH RESPECT TO CONSERVATION OF ENERGY 

_________________________________________________________________________________ 

      Particulars                                                       Year Ended                                  Year Ended 

                                                                                31.3.2021                                    31.3.2020 

--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

Power & Fuel Consumption:                                                     

A) Electricity Purchased                                                        

           Units                                                              394399                                          397311 

           Amount (Rs.)                                               3496868                                        3277817 

           Rate P/Unit (Rs.)                                                8.87                                               8.25 

B) Fuel Consumption                                                             

          Through Diesel Generator  

 Units                                                            99733                                            116234 

          Total Amount (Rs.)                                   1271592                                          1208836 

          Cost P/Unit (Rs.)                                             12.75                                              10.40 
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FORM-B 

 

FORM FOR DISCLOSURE OF PARTICULARS WITH RESPECT TO ABSORPTION OF 
RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT (R&D) 

                                                                                   2020-2021                                2019-2020 

A)  Research & Development                                         NIL                                              NIL 

B)  Technology absorption,                                             NIL                                              NIL 

      Adaptation and innovation 

C)  (i) Foreign Exchange Earnings                              NIL                                               NIL 

     (ii) Foreign Exchange Outgo          

 Foreign Travelling Expenses                             NIL                                   

 Sample Purchase                                              NIL                                             0.83 Lacs 



 
YORK EXPORTS LIMITED 

20 

 

 Annexure II 

C O R P O R A T E   G O V E R N A N C E   R E P O R T 

Company's Philosophy on Corporate Governance 

York Exports Limited‘s philosophy on Corporate Governance envisages the attainment of the highest 
level of transparency and accountability, in all facets of its operations and in all its interactions with its 
stakeholders including shareholders, employees, the Government and the lenders. York Exports Ltd. 
believes that all its operations and actions must serve the underlying goal of enhancing overall 
shareholders' value, over a sustained period of time.  

Compliance regarding corporate Governance as per SEBI (listing obligation and disclosure 
requirements) regulation, 2015 

York Exports Limited‘s shares are listed on Bombay Stock exchange. SEBI (listing obligation and 
disclosure requirements) regulation, 2015 sets out conditions of corporate governance which the 
listed companies are required to comply with.  

Details of compliance with the Corporate Governance Code are given below: 

1. BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

The role of the Board is to determine the Group‘s strategy and provide appropriate leadership. It 
oversees management‘s implementation of the strategy and acts as a sounding board for senior 
executives. It also provides a critical overview of strategic risks and monitors the adequacy of the 
Group‘s control environment.  

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, 
Non-Executive Directors, Woman Director and Independent Directors.  

The composition of the Board is in conformity with SEBI (listing obligation and disclosure 
requirements) regulation, 2015 

(a) Board Meetings: 

During the period under review Nineteen Board Meetings were held and the gap between two 
meetings did not exceed the prescribed limits. The dates on which the Board Meetings were held are 
as follows:- 

28.04.2020, 15.05.2020, 21.05.2020, 02.06.2020, 11.06.2020, 19.06.2020, 29.06.2020, 01.07.2020, 
31.07.2020, 29.08.2020, 31.08.2020, 15.09.2020, 20.10.2020, 10.11.2020, 30.11.2020, 28.12.2020, 
09.02.2021, 12.02.2021, 18.03.2021. 

The names and categories of the Directors on the Board, their attendance at Board Meetings held 
during the year and the number of Directorships and Committee Chairmanship /Memberships held by 
them in other companies is given below. Other directorships do not include alternate directorships, 
directorships of Private Limited Companies, section 25 companies, and of companies incorporated 
outside India. Chairmanship / Membership of Board Committees include only Audit committee, 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee. 

Name of 
Directors 

Category No. of Other 
Directorship 

held in 

Public Ltd. 
Company 

Membership 
of the 

Committee 

No. of 
Board 
Meetings 
attended 

Attendance 
of Last 
AGM 

Gian Chand 
Dhawan 

Promoter/ Director Nil 0 15 Yes 

Ashwani 
Dhawan 

Promoter/Mg. 
Director 

Nil 0 
16 

Yes 

AayushDhawan Promoter/Executive 
Director 

Nil  

0 
18 Yes 

Bharat Bhushan 
Jain 

Non-Executive/ 
Independent 

Nil 3 
19 Yes 
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Anil Bansal Non-Executive/  
Independent 

Nil 
2 17 

Yes 

Ajay Puri Non-Executive/  
Independent 

Nil 
3 15 

Yes 

Veena Vahi Non-Executive/  
Independent 

Nil 
3 13 

Yes 

 

All information laid down in corporate governance code is being placed before the Board in regular 
manner. None of the Directors of the Company were members of more than 10 Committees nor acted 
as the Chairman of more than five Committees across all companies in India; in which he is a 
Director, in terms of SEBI (listing obligation and disclosure requirements) regulation, 2015.  

The company issued formal letters of appointment to independent directors in the manner as provided 
in the Companies Act, 2013.  

The company has formulated a policy to familiarize the independent directors with the company, their 
roles, rights, responsibilities in the company, nature of the industry in which the company operates, 
business model of the company, etc., through various programmes.  

Code of Conduct for Board members and Senior Management 

The Board of Directors has laid down the code of conduct for all the Board members and members of 
the Senior Management of the Company. Additionally all independent directors of the company shall 
be bound by duties of independent directors as set out in the Companies Act, 2013 read with the 
Schedules and Rules thereunder. All the Board members and Senior Management personnel have 
affirmed compliance with the code of conduct. 

BOARD COMMITTEES 

The terms of reference of Board Committees are determined by the Board from time to time. 
Presently the Company has three committees i.e. Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee. All the decisions pertaining to the constitution 
of the Committees, appointment of members, and fixing of terms of reference for committee members 
are taken by the Board of Directors. Details on the role and composition of these committees, 
including the number of meetings held during the financial year and the related attendance, are 
provided below: 

AUDIT COMMITTEE 

The audit committee was constituted in accordance with the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and 
SEBI (listing obligation and disclosure requirements) regulation, 2015. The major tasks performed by 
the audit committee may be grouped under the following heads: 

Statutory audit, internal audit, reporting and other aspects 

i. The Audit Committee of the Company is entrusted with the responsibility to supervise the 
Company‘s internal controls and financial reporting process The Committee acts as a link 
between the Management, Auditors and the Board of Directors of the Company and has full 
access to the financial Information. 

ii  Oversight of the company‘s financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial 
information to ensure that the financial statement is correct, sufficient and credible and ensuring 
timely submission to statutory authorities. 

iii. Reviewing the Management Discussion & Analysis of financial and operational performance. 

iv. Reviewing with the management, the quarterly financial statements and annual financial 
statements and auditor's report thereon before submission to the board for approval. 

v. Review the adequacy and effectiveness of the company‘s system and internal control. 

vi. Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems. 

vii. To review the functioning of the Whistle Blower mechanism. 
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Audit & other duties 

i.  Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and scope of 
audit as well as post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern. 

ii. Discussion with internal auditors of any significant findings and follow up there on. 

iii. Review and recommend to the Board the appointment/re-appointment of the Statutory Auditors 
and internal Auditors considering their independence and effectiveness and their replacement and 
removal. 

iv. To recommend to the Board the remuneration of the Statutory Auditors and internal auditors. 

v. To grant approval for related party transactions which are in the ordinary course of business and 
on an arm‘s length pricing basis and to review and approve such transactions subject to the 
approval of the Board. 

The Composition of Audit Committee is as under: 

Mr. B.B.Jain               :      Chairman and Independent Director 

Mr. Anil Bansal          :       Member    and Independent Director 

Mr. Ajay Puri              :       Member    and Independent Director 

Smt. Veena Vahi        :        Member    and Independent Director 

The audit committee met four times on 21.05.2020, 29.08.2020, 10.11.2020, and 12.02.2021 

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE 

The Nomination and Remuneration committee was constituted in accordance with the provisions of 
Companies Act, 2013 and regulation 19 of SEBI (listing obligation and disclosure requirements) 
regulation, 2015 

The terms of reference of the committee are as follows: 

1. Formulation of the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a 
director and recommend to the Board a policy, relating to the remuneration of the directors, key 
managerial personnel and other employees; 

2.  Formulation of criteria for evaluation of Independent Directors and the Board; 

3.  Devising a policy on Board diversity; 

4.  Identifying persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed in senior 
management in accordance with the criteria laid down, and recommend to the Board their 
appointment and removal. 

The remuneration policy as adopted by the company envisages payment of remuneration according 
to qualification, experience and performance at different levels of the organization. The workers at the 
factory as well as those rendering clerical, administrative and professional services are suitably 
remunerated according to the industry norms. 

The details of the composition of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee are as under: 

Mr. B.B.Jain                 :   Chairman and Independent Director 

Mr. Anil Bansal            :   Member and Independent Director 

Mr. Ajay Puri               :    Member and Independent Director 

Smt.Veena Vahi         :    Member and Independent Director 

Presently, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee consists of four Members. All the members 
of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee are Non-Executive Directors and all are 
independent.  

Further, the remuneration policy of the Company is to bring about objectivity in determining the 
remuneration package while striking a balance between the interest of the Company and the 
shareholders.  
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Details of Remuneration paid to Managing /Whole-time director for the year ended 31.03.2021 is 
given below: 

Name Sitting 
Fees 

(Rs.) 

Salary 

(Rs.) 

Perquisites 
and 

allowances 
etc.(Rs.) 

Commission 
(paid) (Rs) 

Total (Rs.) 

Sh.Gian Chand Dhawan Nil 880000 36300 Nil 916300 

Sh. AshwaniDhawan Nil 2200000 36300 Nil 2236300 

Sh.AayushDhawan Nil 1650000 - Nil 1650000 

Further no sitting fee is paid to any director for attending the board meetings of the company. 

During the year, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee Meeting had met on 20.10.2020. 

iii) Stakeholders' Relationship Committee (Erstwhile Investor Grievance Committee) 

The Stakeholders' Relationship Committee was re-constituted in accordance with the provisions of 
Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 20 of SEBI (listing obligation and disclosure requirements) 
regulations 2015. The major tasks performed by the Stakeholders' Relationship  

The Committee performs following functions: 

 Transfer/Transmission of shares 

 Issue of Duplicate Share Certificates. 

 Review of Share dematerialization and dematerialization. 

 Monitoring the expeditious Redressal of Investor Grievances. 

 Monitoring the performance of company‘s Registrar & Transfer Agent. 

 All other matters related to the shares 

The Composition of the 'Stakeholders' Relationship Committee is as under:-  

Mr. B.B. Jain               :  Chairman and Independent Director 

Smt.Veena Vahi          :  Member    and Independent Director 

Mr. Ajay Puri              :  Member    and Independent Director 

During the year Stakeholders Relationship Committee met Six times on  

28.04.2020, 15.05.2020, 11.06.2020, 28.12.2020, 09.02.2021, 18.03.2021 

The company has an investor base of 2723shareholders. During the year under review, no complaints 
remained pending. There is no valid request pending for share transfer as at the year end. 

INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS‟ MEETING 

During the year under review, the Independent Directors met on August 29, 2020 inter alia to discuss: 

i. Review the performance of non-independent directors and the Board as a   whole; 

ii. Review the performance of the Chairperson of the company, taking into account the views of 
executive directors and non-executive directors 

iii Assess the quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of information between the company 
management and the Board that is necessary for the Board to effectively and reasonably perform 
their duties. 
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FORMULATION OF POLICY FOR SELECTION AND APPOINTMENT OF DIRECTORS AND THEIR 
REMUNERATION 

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee discussed and thereafter decided upon the policy for 
selection of appointment of directors and their remuneration. The highlights of this policy are as 
follows: 

1. Criteria of selection of Non-Executive Directors 

a. The Non-Executive Directors shall be of high integrity with relevant expertise  and experience so 
as to have a diverse Board with Directors having expertise in the fields of manufacturing, 
marketing, finance, taxation, law, governance and general management. 

b.  In case of appointment of Independent Directors, the Committee shall satisfy itself with regard to 
the independent nature of the Directors vis-à-vis the Company so as to enable the Board to 
discharge its function and duties effectively. 

c. The Committee shall ensure that the candidate identified for appointment as a Director is not 
disqualified for appointment under Section 164 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

d. The Committee shall consider the following attributes / criteria, whilst recommending to the Board 
the candidature for appointment as Director. 

i. Qualification, expertise and experience of the Directors in their respective fields; 

ii. Personal, Professional or business standing; 

iii Diversity of the Board. 

e. In case of re-appointment of Non-Executive Directors, the Board shall take into consideration the 
performance evaluation of the Director and his engagement level. 

 

f. Familiarization program for Independent Directors 

The Company has familiarized its Independent Directors regarding the Company and its policies, 
their roles, rights and responsibilities etc. Presentations were made by senior personnel of the 
Company for the Independent Directors covering nature of Industry, business model, business 
performance and operations, challenges & opportunities available etc. Certain programs were 
merged with the Board/Committee meetings for the convenience of the directors and some 
separate programs were also conducted for them as per their requirement. The Details of 
Familiarization program for Independent Directors has been disclosed on the Company‘s website 
http://www.yorkexports.in 

 

Managing Director & Whole Time Director - Criteria for selection / appointment 

For the purpose of selection of the Managing Director or Whole Time Director the Committee shall 
identify persons of integrity who possess relevant expertise, experience and leadership qualities 
required for the position and shall take into consideration recommendation, if any, received from any 
member of the Board.  

The Committee will also ensure that the incumbent fulfils such other criteria with regard to age and 
other qualifications as laid down under the Companies Act, 2013 or other applicable laws. 

Remuneration for the Managing Director or Whole Time Director 

i. At the time of appointment or re-appointment, the Managing Director or Whole Time Director may 
be paid such remuneration as may be mutually agreed between the Company (which includes the 
nomination & Remuneration Committee and the Board of Directors) and the Managing Director or 
Whole Time Director within the overall limits prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013. 

ii. The remuneration shall be subject to the approval of the Members of the Company in General 
Meeting. 

iii. The remuneration of the Managing Director or Whole Time Director may be broadly divided into 
fixed and variable components. The fixed component shall comprise salary, allowances, 
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perquisites, amenities and retiral benefits. The variable component shall comprise performance 
bonus. 

iv. In determining the remuneration (including the fixed increment and performance bonus) the 
Committee shall ensure / consider the following: 

a. the relationship of remuneration and performance benchmarks is clear; 

b. balance between fixed and incentive pay reflecting short and long term performance 
objectives,   appropriate to the working of the Company and its goals; 

 

REMUNERATION POLICY FOR THE SENIOR MANAGEMENT EMPLOYEES 

I. In determining the remuneration of the Senior Management Employees (i.e. KMPs and senior 
officers just below the board level) the Committee shall ensure / consider the following: 

i. the relationship of remuneration and performance benchmark is clear 

ii. the balance between fixed and incentive pay reflecting short and long term  performance 
objectives, appropriate to the working of the Company and its goals; 

iii. the remuneration is divided into two components viz. fixed component comprising salaries, 
perquisites and retirement benefits and a variable component comprising performance bonus; 
the remuneration including annual increment and performance bonus is decided based on the 
criticality of the roles and responsibilities, the Company‘s performance vis-à-vis the annual 
budget achievement, individuals performance and current compensation trends in the market. 

II. The Managing Director or Whole Time Director will carry out the individual performance review 
based on the standard appraisal matrix and shall take into account the appraisal score card and 
other factors and thereafter shall recommend the annual increment and performance incentive to 
the Committee for its review and approval. 

 

PERFORMANCE EVALUATION 

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, a separate exercise was carried out to 
evaluate the performance of individual Directors including the Chairman of the Board who were 
evaluated on parameters such as level of engagement and contribution and independence of 
judgment thereby safeguarding the interest of the Company. The performance evaluation of the 
Independent Directors was carried out by the entire Board. The performance evaluation of the 
Chairman and the Nondependent Directors was carried out by the Independent Directors. The board 
also carried out annual performance evaluation of the working of its Audit, Nomination and 
Remuneration as well as stakeholder relationship committee. The Directors expressed their 
satisfaction with the evaluation process. 

 

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

All transactions entered into with Related Parties as defined under applicable provisions of SEBI 
(listing obligation and disclosure requirements) regulation, 2015  during the financial year were in the 
ordinary course of business and on an arm‘s length pricing basis and do not attract the provisions of 
Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013. There were no materially significant transactions with 
related parties during the financial year which were in conflict with the interest of the Company. 
Suitable disclosure as required by the Accounting Standards (AS18) has been made in the notes to 
the Financial Statements. 

PREVENTION OF INSIDER TRADING 

The Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for Prevention of Insider Trading with a view to 
regulate trading in securities by the Promoters, promoters‘ group, Directors and designated 
employees of the Company. 

Disclosures 

The company has always ensured fair code of conduct and maintained transparency. There were no 
instances of non-compliance by the company, penalties, strictures imposed on the company by Stock 
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Exchange or SEBI or any statutory authority, on any matter related to capital markets, during the last 
three years. In accordance with requirement of Companies Act as well as listing agreement a vigil 
mechanism has been adopted by the board of directors and accordingly a whistle blower policy has 
been formulated with a view to provide a mechanism for employees of the company to approach 
Internal Auditor or Chairman of the Audit Committee of the Company to report any grievance. A link to 
such policy is also provided in the website of the company. Related Party transactions are defined as 
transactions of the Company of a material nature, with Promoters, Directors or the Management, or 
their relatives and associate/subsidiary Companies etc., that may have potential conflict with the 
interest of the Company at large.  

The transactions during the year 2020-21 are reported in notes on accounts forming part of the 
Annual Report. 

The Company has complied with all mandatory requirements laid down by the SEBI (listing obligation 
and disclosure requirements) regulation, 2015. The non-mandatory requirements complied with has 
been disclosed at the relevant places. 

Compliances , rules & regulations as laid down by various statutory authorities has always been 
observed by the company since such change over both in letter as well as in spirit. The Board has 
obtained certificates/disclosures from key management personnel confirming they do not have any 
material financial and commercial interest in transactions with the company at large. 

Compliance with Accounting Standards 

In the preparation of the financial statements, the Company has followed the Accounting Standards 
notified pursuant to Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 (as amended) and the relevant 
provision of the Companies Act, 2013 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs. The significant 
accounting policies which are consistently applied have been set out in the Notes to the Financial 
Statements. 

 

GENERAL BODY MEETINGS: 

The last three Annual General Meetings were held as under: 

Financial Year Date of A.G.M. Time Venue 

2019-2020 28.12.2020 09.00 A.M. Food Plus,WA,141 Shakarpur,Delhi-92 

2018-2019 30.09.2019 09.00 A.M. Food Plus,WA,141 Shakarpur,Delhi-92 

2017-2018 27.09.2018 10.30 A.M. Food Plus,WA,141 Shakarpur,Delhi-92 

No resolution was passed by the members through postal ballot. 

No extra ordinary meeting was held during the year. 

CEO/CFO CERTIFICATION 

As per applicable provisions of SEBI (listing obligations and disclosure requirements) 2015 with the 
stock exchanges Shri. HAKIKAT RAI DHAWAN CFO certify to the Board that: 

a) The financial statements and the Cash Flow Statement for the year have been reviewed and to 
the best of his knowledge and belief: 

(i) These statements do not contain any untrue statement of material fact, have not omitted any 
material fact and do not contain any statement that is misleading; 

(ii) These statements together present a true and fair view of the company‘s affairs and are in 
compliance with existing accounting standards applicable laws and regulations. 

b) To the best of his knowledge and belief no transactions entered into by the company during the 
year are fraudulent, illegal or violate the companies‘ code of conduct. 

c)  He accepts responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting 
and that he has evaluated the effectiveness of internal control systems of the company pertaining 
to financial reporting. 
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d)  He has indicated to the auditors and the Audit Committee: 

i) Significant changes in the internal control over financial reporting during the year 

ii) Significant changes in accounting policies during the year and that the same has been 
disclosed in the notes to the financial statements; and 

iii) There have been no instances of significant fraud either by the management or an employee 
having a significant role in the Company‘s internal control system of financial reporting. 

 

Means of Communication 

During the year, unaudited quarterly and annual financial results of the Company were submitted to 
the stock exchanges soon after the Board meeting approved these. 

Full version of the annual report including the notice of Annual General Meeting, Management‗s 
discussion and analysis, Corporate governance report, balance sheet, profit and loss account, cash 
flow statement along with the schedules and notes thereon, Directors‘ report and Auditors‘ report are 
sent to the shareholders within the stipulated time 

 

COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE  

Compliance Certificate for Corporate Governance from Practicing Company Secretary is annexed 
herewith 

SEBI COMPLAINTS REDRESS SYSTEM (SCORES) 

The Company processes the investors' complaints received by it through a computerized complaints 
redress system. The salient features of this system are Computerized database of all inward receipts 
and action taken on them, online submission of Action Taken Reports (AIRs) along with supporting 
documents electronically in SCORES. The investors can view online the current status of their 
complaints submitted through SEBI Complaints Redress System (SCORES). 

 

GENERAL SHARE HOLDER INFORMATION 

 

a)  Annual General Meeting 

Date                              :  30
th.

September, 2021 

Time                             :   09.00A.M 

Venue                           : S-115, Shakarpur, Delhi-92 

Books closure Dates               :  From Friday, 24
th
 September, 2021 to 

                                       Thursday, 30
th 

September
,
 2021 (Both days inclusive)  

 

b) REGISTRAR AND SHARE TRANSFER AGENTS 

The details of Registrar and Share Transfer Agents of the Company are as follows: 

Beetal Financial & Computer Services Pvt. Ltd. 

BEETAL House, 3rd Floor, 99, Madangir, 

Behind Local Shopping Centre  

New Delhi — 110062  

Tel. No. 011-29961281-83, Fax No. 011 – 29961284 
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(C) INVESTORS CORRESPONDENCE 

All  queries of investors regarding the Company's Shares in Physical form may be sent to 
Registrar & Share Transfer Agent at the address mentioned above or to the Company at its  
following corporate office address:- 

M/s YORK EXPORTS LIMITED 

Civil Lines, Ludhiana 

(D)   Tentative Financial Calendar 

         - Results for quarter ending 30.06.2021:2nd week of August, 2021 

         - Results for quarter ending 30.09.2021:2nd week of November, 2021 

         - Results for quarter ending 31.12.2021:2nd week of February, 2022 

         - Results for the year ending 31.03.2022:4th week of May, 2022 

(E) Listing Details 

      The equity shares are listed on the Bombay Stock Exchange Limited 

(F) Transfer of shares 

All transfers are processed by R & T Agents and approved by the Share Transfer Committee of 
directors 

(G) Distribution of Shareholding and Shareholding Pattern as on 31st March, 2021. 

Range in Amounts No of Shareholder No of shares % of Total Equity 

UPTO-5000 2469 430807 12.81 

5001-10000 152 126244 3.75 

10001-20000 49 77466 2.30 

20001-30000 11 27824 0.83 

30001-40000 13 45500 1.35 

40001-50000 4 19326 0.58 

50001-100000 9 67500 2.01 

100001 AND ABOVE 16         2568133 76.37 

(H) Categories of shareholders as on 31.03.2021 

Category No of shares held % of shareholding 

Promoters & Associates 2520800 74.96 

Financial Institutions, Mutual Funds & 
Banks 

0 0 

Foreign Institutional Investors 0 0 

NRIs 0 0 

GDRs 0 0 

Other Bodies Corporate 65357 1.95 

General Public               776643                  23.09 

Total             3362800 100 
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(I) Dematerialization of Shares and liquidity. 

ISIN of the company is INE057Q01018. 

J) Physical/NSDL/CDSL/Summary Report as on 31st March, 2021 

PARTICULARS SHARES PERCENTAGE% 

Physical   738100 21.95% 

NSDL 2531913 75.29% 

CDSL    92787 2.76% 

Total 3362800 100% 

(K).UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND 

Pursuant to section 125 of the Companies Act, 2013 there were no unclaimed dividends to be 
transferred by the Company to the Education and Protection Fund, during the year. 

(L)  PLANT LOCATION OF THE COMPANY 

Civil Lines, Ludhiana 
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       For & on Behalf of the Board 

      

(Ashwani Dhawan) 

 Managing Director 

 DIN: 00264986 

697, Vishvamitter Street, Cemetery Road, 

 Civil Lines, Ludhiana, 141001, Punjab, India 

Place: Ludhiana   

Date:  01.09.2021 
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ANNEXURE-III 

AUDITORS' CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

 To  

The Members, 

YORK EXPORTS LIMITED, 

We have examined relevant records of M/s York Exports Limited (the company) for the purpose of 
certifying compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance for the financial year ended 31st 
March 2021 as per the provisions of Regulations 17 to 27, clauses (b) to (i) of Regulation 46(2) and 
para C and D of Schedule V of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (―Listing Regulations‖).  

 

We have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief 
were necessary for the purpose of certification. 

 The compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Management. 
Our examination was limited to the review of procedure and implementation thereof. It is neither an 
audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements of the Company. 

 On the basis of our examination of the records produced, explanations and information furnished, we 
certify that the Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance for the financial 
year ended 31st March 2021 as stipulated in the Listing Regulations. 

 This certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the efficacy or 
effectiveness with which the Management has conducted the affairs of the Company.  

                                                     For Reecha Goel & Associates  

                                         Company Secretaries 
           Sd/-  

Reecha Gupta                             

      Proprietor  

FCS: 6562 CP: 7012 

 

 

Place: Phillaur 

Date: 01
st
 September, 2021 
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CERTIFICATE FROM PRACTISING COMPANY SECRETARIES 

This is to certify that on the basis of documents verified by us and explanations given to us by the 
Company, we hereby certify that none of the following directors on the Board of York Exports Limited 

 (‗the Company‘) have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Directors 
of the Company by the Securities and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Reserve 
Bank of India or any other Statutory Authority:  

Sr. No.                      Director Identification Number          Name of Director  

 

1. 00264986 ASHWANI DHAWAN 

2. 00277447 GIAN CHAND DHAWAN 

3. 00277472 BHARAT BHUSHAN JAIN 

4. 00277485 AAYUSH DHAWAN 

5. 00277523 ANIL KUMAR BANSAL 

6. 07191193 VEENA VAHI 

7. 07191198 AJAY PURI 

This certificate is issued pursuant to Clause 10 (i) of Part C of Schedule V of SEBI (Listing Obligations 
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.  

     For Reecha Goel & Associates  

                                          Company Secretaries 
           Sd/-  

Reecha Gupta                             
Proprietor   

FCS: 6562 CP: 7012 

Place: Phillaur 

Date: 01
st
 September, 2021 

 

I, Ashwani Dhawan, Managing Director of York Exports Limited on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
the Company, hereby confirm that the Independent Directors of the Company fulfil the conditions 
specified in the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and are 
independent of the Management.  

     Ashwani Dhawan  

                                    Managing Director  

DIN: 00264986 

697, Vishvamitter Street, Cemetery Road,   

Civil Lines, Ludhiana, 141001 

Place: Ludhiana 
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Dated: 01st September, 2021 

 

 

 

ANNEXURE-IV 

Declaration 

To  

The Members Of 

York Exports Limited 

I, Ashwani Dhawan, Managing Director of the company, hereby certify that the board members and 
senior Management Personnel have affirmed compliance with the rules of code of conduct for the 
financial year ended 31st March, 2021 pursuant to the requirement of regulation 26(3) of the SEBI 
(listing obligations and disclosure requirements) Regulations, 2015 and Companies Act, 2013. 

For York Exports Limited 

 

(Ashwani Dhawan) 

      Managing Director 

        DIN: 00264986 

697, Vishvamitter Street, Cemetery Road,   

Civil Lines, Ludhiana, 141001 
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ANNEXURE-V 

FORM NO. MGT 9 

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN 

As at the end of financial year 31.03.2021 

Pursuant to Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 12(1) of the Company 
(Management & Administration) Rules, 2014. 

I. REGISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS: 

1.  CIN L74899DL1983PLC015416 

2.  Registration Date 21/03/1983 

3.  Name of the Company YORK EXPORTS LIMITED 

4.  Category/Sub-category of 
the Company 

Company having share capital 

5.  Address of the Registered 
office  & contact details 

D-6, DIWAN SHREE APARTMENTS, 30, FEROZESHAH 
ROAD, NEW DELHI-110001  

6.  Whether listed company Yes 

7.  Name, Address & contact 
details of the Registrar & 
Transfer Agent, if any. 

M/s. Beetal Financial & Computer Services (P) Ltd., Beetal 
House, 3rd Floor, 99, Madangir, BH-Local Shopping 
Complex, Near Dada Harsukhdas Mandir, New Delhi-
110062. 

Tel: 011-29961281, 29961282; Fax: 011-29961284 

E mail:- beetal@beetalfinancial.com, beetalrta@gmail.com 

II. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY  

All the business activities contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the company shall be 
stated 

S. No. Name and Description of main 
products / services 

NIC Code of the 
Product/service 
 

%  to total turnover of the company 

1 KNITTED GARMENTS 99882230 100% 

III.   PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES - 

S. 
No. 

Name of the 
company 

Address  of the 
company 

CIN Holding/ 
Subsidiary/As
sociate 
company 

% of 
shares 
held 

1 York Oil and 
Fats Pvt. Ltd 

D-6 Dewan Shree, 
30, Ferozeshah Road 
New Delhi. 

U15142DL1992PTC048168 Associate 
company 

49.73 

 

 

 

 

mailto:beetal@beetalfinancial.com
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VI. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity) 

Category-wise Share Holding 

Category of 
Shareholders 

No. of Shares held at the beginning of 
the year[As on 31-March-2020] 

No. of Shares held at the end of the 
year[As on 31-March-2021] 

% 
Chan

ge 
durin

g 
the 

year     

 Demat Physic
al 

Total % of 
Total 
Shares 

Demat Physical Total % of 
Total 
Shares 

A. Promoters                   

(1) Indian          

a) Individual/ 
HUF 1664600 66400 1731000 51.47 1666000 65000 1731000 51.47 NIL 

b) Central 
Govt 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 NIL 

c) State 
Govt(s) 0 0 0  0 0 0  NIL 

d) Bodies 
Corp. 789800 0 789800 23.49 789800 0 789800 23.49 NIL 

e) Banks / FI 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 NIL 

f) Any other 0 0 0  0 0 0 0 NIL 

Total 
shareholdin
g of 
Promoter (A) 2454400 66400 2520800 74.96 2455800 65000 2520800 74.96 NIL 

B. Public 

Shareholdin
g          

1. Institutions 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 NIL 

a) Mutual 
Funds 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 NIL 

b) Banks / FI 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 NIL 

c) Central 
Govt 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 NIL 

d) State 
Govt(s) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 NIL 

e) Venture 
Capital Funds 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 NIL 

f) Insurance 
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 NIL 
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Companies 

g) FIIs 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 NIL 

h) Foreign 
Venture 
Capital Funds 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 NIL 

i) Others 
(specify) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 NIL 

Sub-total 
(B)(1):- 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 NIL 

2. Non-
Institutions          

a) Bodies 
Corp. 16880 49800 66680 1.98 15557 49800 65357 1.94 (0.04) 

i) Indian 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 NIL 

ii) Overseas 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 NIL 

b) Individuals 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 NIL 

i) Individual 
shareholders 
holding 
nominal 
share capital 
uptoRs. 1 
lakh 125267 631300 756567 22.50 120733 623300 744033 22.13 (0.37) 

ii) Individual 
shareholders 
holding 
nominal 
share capital 
in excess of 
Rs 1 lakh 

 

 

 

 

11873 0 11873 0.35 25733 0 25733 0.77 0.42 

c) Others 
(specify) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 NIL 

Non Resident 
Indians 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 NIL 

Overseas 
Corporate 
Bodies 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 NIL 

Foreign 
Nationals 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 NIL 

Clearing 
Members 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 NIL 
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Trusts 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 NIL 

Foreign 
Bodies - D R 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 NIL 

HUF 6880 0 6880 0.20 6877 0 6877 0.20  

Sub-total 
(B)(2):- 160900 681100 842000 25.04 168900 673100 842000 25.04  

Total Public 
Shareholding 
(B)=(B)(1)+ 
(B)(2) 160900 681100 842000 25.04 168900 673100 842000 25.04  

C. Shares 
held by 
Custodian 
for GDRs & 
ADRs          

Grand Total 
(A+B+C) 2615300 747500 3362800 100 2624700 738100 3362800 100 NIL 

B) Shareholding of Promoter- 

SN Shareholder‘s Name 
Shareholding at the 
beginning of the year 

Shareholding at the end of 
the year 

% change 
in 
shareholdi
ng during 
the year 

  

  No. of 
Shares 

% of 
total 

Shares 
of the 
compa

ny 

%of 
Shares 
Pledge
d / 
encum
bered 
to total 
shares 

No. of 
Shares 

% of 
total 

Shares 
of the 
compa

ny 

%of 
Shares 
Pledge
d / 
encum
bered 
to total 
shares 

1 RAHUL SONI 24900 0.74 NIL 24900 0.74 NIL NIL 

2 MUSKAN DHAWAN      5900 0.17 NIL 5900 0.17 NIL NIL 

3 ARJUN SONI                 24900 0.74 NIL 24900 0.74 NIL NIL 

4 PUNAM SONI               39500 1.17 NIL 39500 1.17 NIL NIL 

5 ANITA SONI                   93200 2.77 NIL 93200 2.77 NIL NIL 

6 AAYUSH DHAWAN 165400 4.92 NIL 165400 4.92 NIL NIL 

7 JYOTI DHAWAN 191900 5.71 NIL 191900 5.71 NIL NIL 

8 NAMITA CHOPRA 224600 6.68 NIL 224600 6.68 NIL NIL 

9 ASHWANI 
DHAWAN 232400 6.91 NIL 232400 6.91 NIL NIL 
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10 MOHINI DHAWAN 360800 10.73 NIL 360800 10.73 NIL NIL 

11 SH.GIAN CHAND 
DHAWAN 367500 10.93 NIL 367500 10.93 NIL NIL 

12 YORK E- RETAIL 
PVT.LTD 504000 14.99 NIL 504000 14.99 NIL NIL 

13 YORK OIL & FATS 
(p) Ltd.  285800 8.50 NIL 285800 8.50 NIL NIL 

 Total 2520800 74.96 NIL 2520800 74.96 NIL NIL 

C) Change in Promoters‟ Shareholding: - NIL 

SN Name of Shareholder Shareholding at the 
beginning of the year 

Cumulative Shareholding 
during the year 

No. of 
shares 

% of total 

shares of the 

company 

No. of 
shares 

% of total 

shares of the 

company 

      

      

 

D) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders:  

 (Other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs): 

SN For Each of the Top 10 

Shareholders 

Shareholding at the 
beginning 

of the year 

Cumulative 
Shareholding during the 

year 

No. of 
shares 

% of  

total 

shares of 
the 

company 

No. of 
shares 

% of total 

shares of 
the 

company 

1 GARG CAPITAL SERVICES LTD 15000 0.44 15000 0.44 

2 GOPAL KRISHAN FINANCE LTD 13100 0.39 13100 0.39 

3 SANJAY KUMAR SARAWAGI 11873 0.35 13499 0.40 

4 SANDEEP JALOTA 9900 0.29 9900 0.29 

5 SIGMA FINCAP PVT. LTD. 9400 0.28 9400 0.28 

6 MAYAR FINANCE LTD 9200 0.27 9200 0.27 

7 KAMLESH KUMARI SADU 8200 0.24 8200 0.24 
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8 SIGMA CEMENTS LTD 8000 0.24 8000 0.24 

9 DEEPINDER SINGH POONIAN 6844 0.20 12234 0.36 

10 KAILASH JINDAL 6000 0.17 6000 0.17 

E) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel: 

SN Shareholding of each Directors and 
each Key Managerial Personnel 

Shareholding at the 
beginning 

of the year 

Cumulative 
Shareholding during the 
year 

No. of 
shares 

% of total 

shares of 
the 

company 

No. of 
shares 

% of total 

shares of 
the 

company 

1. ASHWANI DHAWAN 232400 6.91 232400   6.91 

2. GIAN CHAND DHAWAN 367500 10.93 367500 10.93 

3. BHARAT BHUSHAN JAIN 200 0.006 200 0.006 

4 AAYUSH DHAWAN 165400  4.92 165400   4.92 

5 ANIL KUMAR BANSAL --- --- --- --- 

6 VEENA VAHI --- --- --- --- 

7 AJAY PURI --- --- --- --- 

8 HAKIKAT RAI DHAWAN 200 0.006 200 0.006 

9 JYOTI PARIHAR --- --- --- --- 

V) INDEBTEDNESS-Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not 
due for payment. 

  

Secured Loans 
excluding 
deposits 

Unsecured 
Loans 

Deposits 
Total 
Indebtedness 

Indebtedness at the beginning of 
the financial year 

  
  

    

i) Principal Amount 55963707.71 32048770.00 - 88012477.71 

ii) Interest due but not paid     

iii) Interest accrued but not due     

Total (i+ii+iii) 55963707.71 32048770.00 - 88012477.71 

Change in Indebtedness during the 
financial year 

 
 

  



 
YORK EXPORTS LIMITED 

39 

 

* Addition 17127504.87 -  17127504.87 

* Reduction -   7569623.00 -     7569623.00 

Net Change     

Indebtedness at the end of the 
financial year 

 
 

  

i) Principal Amount 73091212.58 24479147.00 - 97570359.58 

ii) Interest due but not paid     

iii) Interest accrued but not due     

Total (i+ii+iii) 73091212.58 24479147.00 - 97570359.58 

VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL- 

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager: 

GIAN CHAND DHAWAN (CHAIRMAN)  

SN. Particulars of 
Remuneration 

GIAN CHAND DHAWAN  
(CHAIRMAN ) 

 Total Amount 

1 Gross salary     

(a) Salary as per 
provisions contained 
in section 17(1) of the 
Income-tax Act, 1961 

8,80,000 8,80,000 

(b) Value of 
perquisites u/s 17(2) 
Income-tax Act, 1961 

36,300  36,300 

(c) Profits in lieu of 
salary under section 
17(3) Income- tax Act, 
1961 

 

---- 

  

---- 

2 Stock Option ----  ---- 

3 Sweat Equity ----  ---- 

4 Commission 
-  as % of profit 
-  others, specify… 

 

---- 

 

 ---- 

5 Others, please specify 

  

---- 

 

 ---- 

  Total (A) 9,16,300  9,16,300 

  Ceiling as per the Act 

  

Within Limits 

 

 Within Limits 
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ASHWANI DHAWAN (MANAGING DIRECTOR)  

SN. Particulars of 
Remuneration 

ASHWANI DHAWAN 
(MANAGING 
DIRECTOR) 

         TOTAL AMOUNT  

1 Gross salary     

(a) Salary as per 
provisions contained 
in section 17(1) of the 
Income-tax Act, 1961 

22,00,000 22,00,000  

(b) Value of 
perquisites u/s 17(2) 
Income-tax Act, 1961 

36,300 36,300  

(c) Profits in lieu of 
salary under section 
17(3) Income- tax Act, 
1961 

 

---- 

 

---- 

 

 

2 Stock Option ---- ----  

3 Sweat Equity ---- 

 

----  

4 Commission 
-  as % of profit 
-  others, specify… 

 

---- 

 

----  

5 Others, please specify 

  

---- 

 

----  

  Total (A) 22,36,300 22,36,300  

  Ceiling as per the Act 

  

Within Limits 

 

Within Limits    

 

AAYUSH DHAWAN (WHOLE-TIME DIRECTOR)  

SN. Particulars of 
Remuneration 

AAYUSH DHAWAN 
(WHOLE-TIME 

DIRECTOR)  

 

Total Amount  

        

1 Gross salary     

(a) Salary as per 
provisions contained 
in section 17(1) of the 
Income-tax Act, 1961 

16,50,000 16,50,000  

(b) Value of 
perquisites u/s 17(2) 

--- ---  
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Income-tax Act, 1961  

---- 

 

---- 

(c) Profits in lieu of 
salary under section 
17(3) Income- tax Act, 
1961 

 

 

---- 

 

 

---- 

 

2 Stock Option ---- ----  

3 Sweat Equity ---- 

 

----  

4 Commission 
-  as % of profit 
-  others, specify… 

  

 

---- 

 

----  

5 Others, please specify ---- ----  

  Total (A) 16,50,000 16,50,000  

  Ceiling as per the Act  Within Limits Within Limits    

 

B. Remuneration to other directors 

SN. Particulars of 
Remuneration 

Name of Directors Total Amount 

     ANIL KUMAR 
BANSAL 

VEENA VAHI AJAY PURI BHARAT  

BHUSHAN 

JAIN 

   

1 Independent 
Directors 

 ---- ---- ---- ----  ----- 

Fee for attending 
board & 
committee 
meetings  --- 

     

Commission  --- --- --- ---  --- 

Others, please 
specify  --- --- --- ---  

--- 

Total (1)  ---      

2 Other Non-
Executive 
Directors 

       

Fee for attending 
board & 
committee 
meetings   
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Commission  --- --- --- ---   

Others, please 
specify  ---   --- ---   ---    

  Total (2)        

  Total (B)=(1+2)             

  
Total Managerial 
Remuneration 

 
      

  
Overall Ceiling 
as per the Act 

 Within limits Within limits Within 
limits 

Within 
limits 

 Within 
limits 

 

C. REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN MD/MANAGER/WTD 

SN Particulars of Remuneration Key Managerial Personnel 

    CEO CS CFO Total 

1 Gross salary         

(a) Salary as per provisions contained in 
section 17(1) of the Income-tax Act, 1961 

-- 192500 394935 587435 

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-
tax Act, 1961 

-- -- -- ---- 

(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 
17(3) Income-tax Act, 1961 

-- -- -- --- 

2 Stock Option -- -- -- --- 

3 Sweat Equity -- -- -- --- 

4 Commission -- -- -- --- 

  -  as % of profit -- -- -- --- 

  Others, specify… -- -- -- --- 

5 Others, please specify -- -- -- --- 

  Total -- 192500 394935 587435 
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VII. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES: 

Type Section of the 
Companies Act 

Brief 
Description 

Details of Penalty 
/ Punishment/ 
Compounding 
fees imposed 

Authority 
[RD / NCLT/ 
COURT] 

Appeal 
made, 
if any (give 
Details) 

A. COMPANY 

Penalty  

  

None 
Punishment 

Compounding 

B. DIRECTORS 

Penalty  

  

None 
Punishment 

Compounding 

C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT 

Penalty  

None 
Punishment 

Compounding 

 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

 

Aayush Dhawan                 Ashwani Dhawan                 

Whole time Director              Managing Director               

DIN: 00277485                   DIN: 00264986                     

 

Place: New Delhi 

Dated: 01.09.2021 
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SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

 

To,  

The Members,  

York Exports Limited  

New Delhi 

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the 
adherence to good corporate practices by York Exports Limited (hereinafter referred to as Company).  

Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the 
corporate conducts, statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.  

Based on our verification of the Company‘s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and 
other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its 
officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, We hereby 
report that in my opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended 
on 31

st
 March, 2021 complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the 

Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the 
manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:  

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records 
maintained by the company for the financial year ended on 31

st
 March, 2021 according to the 

provisions of:  

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;  

(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‗SCRA‘) and the rules made thereunder;  

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;  

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the 
extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial 
Borrowings;  

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of 
India Act, 1992 (‗SEBI Act‘):-  

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) 
Regulations, 2011;  

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 1992;  

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2009; (Not applicable to the company during the Audit period) 

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee 
Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999; (Not applicable to the company during the Audit 
period) 

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) 
Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;  

(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009; (Not 
applicable to the company during the Audit period) 

(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998; (Not 
applicable to the company during the Audit period) 

(h) SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 

Further, the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) 
Regulations, 2008 are not applicable to the company as the company has not issued/listed any 
debt securities. 



 
YORK EXPORTS LIMITED 

45 

 

 

We have also examined compliance of the applicable Secretarial Standards issued by The 
Institute of Company Secretaries of India. 

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, 
Regulations, Guidelines etc. mentioned above.  

We further report that  

(a) The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive 
Directors, Non-Executive Directors, Woman Director and Independent Directors. There is no 
change in the composition of the Board of Directors during the period under review.  

(b) Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed 
notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and 
obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for 
meaningful participation at the meeting.  

(c) Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members‘ views are captured and 
recorded as part of the minutes, wherever applicable.  

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate 
with the size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable 
laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.  

We further report that during the audit period, , there were no other specific events/actions in 
pursuance of above referred laws, rules, regulations and guidelines, having a major bearing on 
the company‘s affairs. 

For Reecha Goel & Associates 

Company Secretaries  

 

(Reecha Gupta) 

Prop. 

FCS 6562 

C P No.:7012 

Place: Phillaur 

Date: 30.06.2021 

UDIN: F006562C000551535 

 

This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as’ Annexure A’ and forms an 
integral part of this report. 
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‗ANNEXURE A‘ 

To 

The Members, 

York Exports Limited 

New Delhi 

 

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter. 

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the company. Our 
responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit. 

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable 
assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was 
done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that 
the processes and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of 
Accounts of the company. 

4. Wherever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of 
laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc. 

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, 
standards is the responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the verification of 
procedures on test basis. 

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor of 
the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the 
company. 

For Reecha Goel & Associates 

Company Secretaries  

 

(Reecha Gupta) 

Prop. 

FCS 6562 

C P No.:7012 

Place: Phillaur 

Date: 30.06.2021 
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FORM NO. AOC – 2 

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the 
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. 

Form for Disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related 
parties referred to in sub section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm‘s 
length transaction under third proviso thereto. 

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at Arm‟s length basis. 

SL. 
No. 

Particulars Details 

a)  Name (s) of the related party & nature of relationship NIL 

b)  Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction NIL 

c)  Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transaction NIL 

d)  Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transaction 
including the value, if any 

NIL 

e)  Justification for entering into such contracts or arrangements or 
transactions‘ 

NIL 

f)  Date of approval by the Board NIL 

g)  Amount paid as advances, if any NIL 

h)  Date on which the special resolution was passed in General 
meeting as required under first proviso to section 188 

NIL 

2. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm‘s length basis. 

SL. No. Particulars Details 

a)  Name (s) of the related party & nature of relationship  

b)  Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction  

c)  Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transaction  

d)  Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transaction 
including the value, if any 

Details of Related 
Party Transactions 
are disclosed in 
note No. 27.11 & 
27.12 of the 
Financial 
Statements 

e)  Justification for entering into such 
contracts/arrangements/transaction 

 

f)  Date of approval by the Board  

g)  Amount paid as advances, if any NIL 

h)  Date on which the special resolution was passed in general 
meeting as required under first proviso of section 188 
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FORM AOC-1 

(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) 
Rules, 2014)Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries/associate 
companies/joint ventures 

Part “A”: Subsidiaries 

(Information in respect of each subsidiary to be presented with amounts in Rs.): 

Not applicable as company is not having any subsidiaries. 

Sl. 
No. 

Particulars Details 

1 Name of the subsidiary - - - 

2 Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, if different 
from the holding company's reporting period 

 

 

- 

 

 

- 

 

 

- 

3 Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on the last date 
of the relevant Financial year in the case of foreign 
subsidiaries 

 

 

 

- 

 

 

 

- 

 

 

 

- 

4 Share capital - - - 

5 Reserves & surplus - - - 

6 Total assets - - - 

7 Total Liabilities - - - 

8 Investments (Net of Provision For Diminution in Value) - - - 

9 Turnover - - - 

10 Profit before taxation - - - 

11 Provision for taxation - - - 

12 Profit after taxation - - - 

13 Proposed Dividend - - - 

 % of Shareholding - - - 

Notes: The following information shall be furnished at the end of the statement: 

1. Names of subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations. N.A. 

2. Names of subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year. N.A. 
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Part “B”: Associates and Joint Ventures 

Statement pursuant to Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Associate 
Companies and Joint Ventures 

Name of associate YORK OIL AND FATS PRIVATE 
LIMITED 

Latest audited Balance Sheet Date 31.03.2021 

Shares of Associate/Joint Ventures held by the 
company on the year end 

 

No. 410285 

Amount of Investment in Associates/Joint Venture 4102850 

Extend of Holding% 49.73 % 

Description of how there is significant influence Section 2(6) of the Companies Act, 
2013 

Reason why the associate/joint venture is not 
consolidated 

 

Net worth attributable to shareholding as per latest 
audited Balance Sheet 

469.66 Lacs 

Profit/(Loss) for the year* 21.92 Lacs 

Considered in Consolidation 10.90 Lacs 

Not Considered in Consolidation N.A. 

1. Names of associates or joint ventures which are yet to commence operations:  NA 

2. Names of associates or joint ventures which have been liquidated or sold during the year: 
NA 

Note: This Form is to be certified in the same manner in which the Balance Sheet is to be 
certified. 

  

http://www.mca.gov.in/mcafoportal/viewCompanyMasterData.do
http://www.mca.gov.in/mcafoportal/viewCompanyMasterData.do
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Independent Auditor‟s Report 
 

To The Members of 

York Exports Limited 

Report on the Audit of Standalone Financial Statements  

Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of York Exports Limited (―the 
Company‖), which comprises the standalone Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2021, the standalone 
Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), standalone  statement of  changes 
in equity and standalone  statement of cash  flows for the year then ended, and notes to the standalone 
financial statements including  a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory 
information (hereinafter referred to as ―the standalone financial statements‖). 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 
aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies  Act, 2013  (―the  
Act‖) in  the  manner so  required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the  Indian  Accounting  
Standards prescribed under  section  133  of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting 
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (―Ind AS‖) and other accounting principles generally accepted in 
India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2021, the profit and total comprehensive 
income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date. 

 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards on 
Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities under those Standards are 
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements 
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued 
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that are 
relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules 
made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these 
requirements and the ICAI‘s Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the standalone financial statements. 

 

Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our 
audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the 
context of our audit of the standalone financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, 
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. 

 

Information other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor‟s Report   thereon 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The 
other information comprises the  information included in the Board's Report including annexures to the 
Board's Report and Management Discussion & Analysis Report, but does not include the standalone 
financial statements and our auditors' report thereon. The Board's Report including annexures to the 
Board's Report and Management Discussion & Analysis Report is expected to be made available to 
us after the date of this auditors' report. 

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we will 
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the 
other information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the 
other information is materially inconsistent with the standalone financial statements or our knowledge 
obtained during the course of our audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. When we 
read the Board's Report including annexures to the Board's Report and Management Discussion & 
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Analysis Report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are required to  
communicate the matter to those charged with governance. 

 

Management‟s Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements 

The Company‘s  Board of  Directors are  responsible  for  the  matters stated in  section 134(5)  of the  Act 
with  respect  to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that  give  a  true  and  fair  view  
of  the financial position, financial performance (including other comprehensive income), changes in equity 
and cash flows  of the  Company  in  accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, 
including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act. This  
responsibility  also  includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the 
provisions of the  Act for safeguarding  the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds 
and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and 
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate 
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of 
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone financial  
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud 
or error. 

In preparing the standalone financial statements, the management and Board of Directors are responsible 
for assessing the Company‘s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters 
related to going concern  and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management and Board 
of Directors either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative 
but to do so. 

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company‘s financial reporting process. 

 

Auditor‟s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as 
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor‘s 
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a 
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement 
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or 
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken 
on the basis of these standalone financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain 
professional skepticism  throughout the audit. We also: 

•    Identity and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error,    design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, 
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The 
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting 
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or 
the override of internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are 
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal 
financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

•    Conclude on the appropriateness of management‘s use of the going concern basis of accounting 
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events 
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company‘s ability to continue as a going 
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our 
auditor‘s report to the related disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if such 
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit 
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evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor‘s report. However, future events or conditions may 
cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 

•   Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the 
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatement in the standalone financial statement that, individually or 
in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of 
the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative 
factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to 
evaluate the effect of any identified misstatement in the standalone financial statements. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned 
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in 
internal control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant 
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and 
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, 
related safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters 
that were of most significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period 
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law 
or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, 
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse 
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of 
such communication. 

 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that: 

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our 
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit. 

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far 
as it appears from our examination of those books. 

c) The standalone Balance Sheet, the standalone statement of profit and loss (including Other 
Comprehensive Income), the standalone statement of changes in Equity and the standalone 
statement of cash flow dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of 
account. 

a) In  our  opinion,  the  aforesaid  standalone  financial  statements  comply with  the  Ind AS 
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 
2014. 

b) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2021 
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 
2021 from being appointed as   a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act. 

c) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting  of  the 
Company  and the operating   effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in  
“Annexure  A”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating 

effectiveness of the Company‘s internal financial controls over financial reporting. 

d) With respect to the other matters to be included  in  the Auditor‘s  Report  in  accordance with  the 
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended: 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 
remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the 
provisions of section 197 of the Act. 

e) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor‘s Report in accordance with Rule 
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11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014,  as amended in  our  opinion  and to the  
best of  our  information and according to the explanations given to us: 

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position in its 
standalone financial statements. 

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there 
were any material foreseeable losses. 

iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required  to be transferred, to the Investor 
Education and Protection Fund by the Company. 

2.   As  required by the Companies (Auditor‘s Report) Order, 2016 (―the Order‖) issued by the Central 
Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in ―Annexure B‖ a statement on the 
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order. 

 

For Rakesh Mahajan & Associates 

Chartered Accountants  

(Firm‘s   Registration No. 011816N) 

 

 

 

(CA. Rakesh Mahajan) 

Proprietor 

  Membership No.090796 

 

 

Place: Ludhiana 

Date: 30.06.2021 
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ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR‟S REPORT 

(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under ‗Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements‘ section 
of our report to the Members of York Exports Limited of even date) 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting under Clause(i) Of Sub-
section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) 
We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements 
of York Exports Limited (―the Company‖) as of March 31, 2021 in conjunction with our audit of the 
standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date. 

Management‟s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Board of Directors of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal 
financial controls based on the internal control with reference to standalone financial statements 
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated 
in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by 
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, 
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that  were operating 
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct  of its business, including adherence to 
respective company‘s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection  of 
frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely 
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Ac t, 2013. 

Auditor‟s Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over  financial reporting 
of the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance 
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the ―Guidance Note‖) 
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing  
prescribed  under Sec tion 143(10) of the Companies Ac t, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit 
of internal  financial  c controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with 
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and 
maintained and if such  controls operated  effectively  in all material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the 
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our 
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of 
internal   financial   controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness 
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based 
on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor‘s judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to 
fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our audit opinion on the internal financial c controls system  over  financial  reporting of the 
Company. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

A company‘s internal financial controls over financial reporting is a process designed to provide 
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of 
standalone financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles. A company‘s internal financial control with  reference  to standalone 
financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of 
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of 
the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance  that  transactions are recorded as 
necessary to permit preparation of standalone financial statements in ac c ordanc e with generally   
accepted accounting principles , and that receipts and expenditures of the company are 
being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; 
and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention  or timely  detection of unauthorised  
acquisition,  use, or disposition  of the  c ompany‘s assets that c ould have a material effec t on the 
standalone financ ial statements. 
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including 
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements 
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the 
internal financial c controls with reference to standalone financial reporting to future periods are subject 
to the risk that the internal financial controls over financial reporting may become inadequate 
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or 
procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 
Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over 
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over  standalone financial reporting were 
operating effectively as at March 31, 2021, based on the internal controls over financial reporting 
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal controls 
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 

 

 

For Rakesh Mahajan & Associates 

Chartered Accountants  

(Firm‘s   Registration No. 011816N) 

 

 

 

(CA. Rakesh Mahajan) 

Proprietor 

  Membership No.090796 

Place :  Ludhiana 

Date   : 30.06.2021 
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ANNEXURE „B‟ TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR‟S REPORT 

(Referred to in paragraph 2 under „Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements‟ 
section of our report to the Members of York Exports Limited of even date) 

i. In respect of the  Company‘s  fixed assets: 

(a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details 
and situation of fixed assets. 

(b) As explained to us, the management has physically verified the fixed assets during the year, 
which in our opinion is reasonable having regard to the size of the company and the nature of 
its assets. No material discrepancies were noticed on such verification. 

ii. The inventories have been physically verified by the management at reasonable intervals during the 
year except those lying with the third parties.  The procedure of physical verification of inventories 
followed by the management are reasonable and adequate in relation to the size of the company and 
the nature of its business. As per information and explanations given to us, no material discrepancies 
were noticed on physical verification of inventories as compared to book records. 

iii. The company has not granted any loans, secured or  unsecured to company, firm, Limited Liability 
partnership or other parties covered in the Register maintained under section 189 of the Act 
.Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(iii)(a) to (c) of the Order are not applicable to the 
Company. 

iv. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given  to us, the  Company  has 
complied with the provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the Act in respect of grant of loans, making 
investments and providing guarantees and securities, as applicable. 

v. The Company has not accepted deposits during the year and does not have any unclaimed deposits 
as at March 31, 2021 and therefore, the provisions of the clause 3 (v) of the Order are not applicable 
to the Company. 

vi. According to information and explanations given to us, the maintenance of cost records under section 
148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company. 

vii. According to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of statutory dues: 

(a) The Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues, including 
Provident Fund, Employees‘ State Insurance, Income Tax, Goods and Service Tax, Customs 
Duty, Cess and other material statutory dues applicable to it with the appropriate authorities. 

(b) There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of  Provident  Fund,  Employees‘  State 
Insurance, Income Tax, Goods and Service Tax, Customs Duty, Cess and other material  
statutory dues in arrears as at March 31, 2021 for a period of more than six months from the date 
they became payable. 

(c) There is no amount payable on account of Income Tax, Goods and Service Tax, Sale Tax, 
Service Tax, Custom Duty and Excise Duty etc. which has not been deposited on account of 
dispute. 

viii. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not 
defaulted in the repayment of dues to any financial institutions, banks or the government or debenture 
holders during the year. 

ix. The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including 
debt instruments) during the year. Term loans raised during the year were applied for the purpose they 
were raised.  

x. To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud 
by the Company or no material fraud on the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed 
or reported during the year. 

xi. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has 
paid/provided managerial remuneration in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the 
provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act. 

xii.  According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi Company.  
Therefore , the provisions of clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 
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xiii. According to the information and explanations given to us and based  on our examination of the 
records of the Company, all the transactions with the related parties are in compliance with section 177 
and 188 of the Act and the  detail of such transactions have been disclosed in  the  standalone  
financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards. 

xiv. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records 
of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares 
or fully or partly paid convertible debentures during the year. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3 (xiv) 
of the Order are  not applicable to the Company. 

xv. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not entered into any 
non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with them. Accordingly the provisions of 
section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company. 

xvi. The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 
1934. 

 

For Rakesh Mahajan & Associates 

Chartered Accountants  

(Firm‘s   Registration No. 011816N) 

 

 

 

(CA. Rakesh Mahajan) 

Proprietor 

  Membership No.090796 

 

 

Place: Ludhiana 

Date: 30.06.2021 
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Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31
st

 March, 2021                 

1.   Background 

York Exports Ltd (the ―Company‖) incorporated in 1983 is engaged in the business of Hosiery Knitted 
Garments in India. The company is a public company domiciled in India under the provision of 
companies Act, 1956. Its shares are listed in recognized stock exchange BSE of India. The registered 
office of the company is located in New Delhi. 

2.   Significant accounting policies 

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these 
financial statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless 
otherwise stated. The financial statements are for the Company consisting of York Exports Limited 
(the ‗Company‘). 

i) Basis of Preparation 

Compliance with Ind AS 

The financial statements comply in all material aspects with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) 
notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 3 of the Companies (Indian 
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and other relevant provisions of the Act. 

The Financial Statements have been prepared on accrual basis and under historical cost basis, 
except insurance claim and Employee‘s Defined Benefit Plan as per actuarial valuation. 

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current & non-current as per Company‘s normal 
operating cycle and other criteria set out in the schedule III of the Act. 

ii) Foreign currency transaction 

Transaction denominated in foreign currency is recorded at the exchange rate prevailing at the date of 
transaction. Exchange differences arising on settlement / conversion of foreign currency transaction 
are included in the profit and loss account. 

iii) Revenue recognition 

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivables. Amounts 
disclosed as revenue are net of returns, trade allowances, rebates, discounts, and goods and service 
taxes. 

Sale of goods 

Sales are recognised when substantial risk and rewards of ownership are transferred to customer as 
per the terms of the contract, there is no continuing managerial involvement with the goods. The 
Company retains no effective control of the goods transferred to a degree usually associated with 
ownership and no significant uncertainty exists regarding the amount of the consideration that will be 
derived from the sale of goods. in case of domestic customer, sales take place when goods are 
dispatched or delivery is handed over to transporter. 

Revenue from Services 

Revenue from services is recognised in the accounting period in which the services are rendered. 

iv) Investments (Financial Assets 

Investments are carried at cost and provision is made in the accounts for diminution in the value of 
investment. 

a)  Initial Recognition 

Investments are initially recognised at cost. 

b)  Classification and Subsequent Measurement: Investment 

The Company classifies investment as subsequently measured at fair value through other 
comprehensive   income (―FVOCI‖) on the basis of following:  

- The entity‘s business model for managing the financial assets and 
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- The contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset. 

c) Impairment of Investments 

Investment other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for indicators of impairment at the end   of    
each reporting period. The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has been a 
significant increase in credit risk. In books such impairment is recorded as diminution in the value of 
investment. 

d)  Investments in associates 

Under Ind AS, Paragraph D14 and D15 of Ind AS 101 permits a first time adopter to elect to continue 
with the carrying value of its investments in associates as recognised in the financial statements as at 
the date of transition to Ind AS, measured as per the previous GAAP. 

v)   Property, Plant and equipment & Intangible assets 

All assets are stated at cost, net of duties and taxes and includes incidental expenses and borrowing 
cost, Less accumulated depreciation and impairment loss if any. 

On transition to Ind AS, the Company has adopted optional exemption under Ind AS 101 to measure  
property, Plant and Equipment at previous GAAP carrying value. Consequently, the previous GAAP 
carrying value has been summed to be deemed cost of Property, Plant and Equipment on the date of 
transition i.e. 1st April, 2016. 

Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value 

Depreciation for the year has been provided on Straight Line Method on the basis of useful lives 
specified in Schedule-II of the Companies Act, 2013. 

vi) Inventories Valuation 

Raw materials, stores and spares and packing materials at cost, work in process at raw materials cost 
plus    conversion cost depending on the stage of completion, finished goods at cost  or net realisable 
value whichever is less and waste/damaged goods etc.at estimated realisable value. 

vii) Reorganization of Income & Expenditure  

All incomes and expenditures are accounted for on accrued basis except insurance claims, which are 
being counted for on receipt basis.   

viii) Provisions and Contingent Liabilities 

Provisions are recognised when the company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a 
result of past events., it is possible that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation 
and the amount can be reliably estimated. 

Provisions are measured at the present value of management‘s best estimate of the expenditure 
required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period. 

Contingent liabilities are disclosed by way of Notes to Balance Sheet. Provision is made in the 
accounts in respect of liabilities which are acknowledged by the company and which have material 
effect on the position stated in the balance sheet. 

xi)   Impairment of non-financial assets 

At each balance sheet date, the company reviews the carrying amount of its fixed assets to determine 
whether there is any indication that the assets suffered any impairment loss. If any such indication 
exists, the recoverable amount of the assets is estimated in order to determine the extent of 
impairment of loss. Recoverable amount is higher of the assets net selling price and value in use. In 
assessing value in use, estimated future cash flows expected from the continuing use of the assets 
and from its disposal are discounted to their present value using a pretax discount rate that reflects 
the current market assessment of time value of money and the risks specific to the assets. 

x)    Taxes on Income including Deferred Tax 

Current tax is determined as the amount of tax payable in respect of income for the period.   Deferred 
tax is recognized subject to the consideration of prudence in respect of deferred tax assets, on timing 
differences, being the difference between the taxable income and accounting income that originate in 
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one year and are capable of reversal in one or more year. Deferred tax assets are not recognized 
unless there is a sufficient assurance with respect to its reversal in future years. 

xi) Borrowing costs 

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or 
production of a qualifying asset are capitalised during the period of time that is required to complete 
and prepare the asset for its intended use or sale. Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily take a 
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale. 

xii) Trade receivables 

Trade receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently  measured at amortised cost 
using the effective interest method  less provision for impairment. 

xiii)  Cash and cash equivalents 

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes 
cash in hand and other bank balances. 

xiv) Government Grant 

Government Grant received toward specific fixed assets have been deducted from the gross value of 
concerned fixed assets and grant received during the year towards revenue expenditure have been 
reduced from respective expenses or shown as other income. 

xv) Employee benefits 

(i) Short term obligations 

Liabilities for wages and salaries, short term compensated absence and ex-gratia including non-
monetary benefits that are expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the period 
in which the employees render the related service are recognised in respect of employees‘ services 
up to the end of the reporting period and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the 
liabilities are settled. The liabilities are presented as current employee benefits obligations in the 
balance sheet. 

Leave encashment - provision for Leave encashment is accounted and provided for at the end of the 
financial year. 

(ii) Post-employment obligations 

The liability or asset recognised in the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit gratuity plans is the 
present value of the defined benefit obligations at the end of the reporting period less the fair value of 
plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by actuaries using the projected unit 
credit method. 

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined 
benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets. This cost is included in employee benefit expenses 
in the statement of profit or loss. 

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial 
assumptions are recognised in the period in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive 
income. They are included in retained earnings in the statement of changes in equity and in the 
balance sheet. 

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from plan amendments or 
curtailments are recognised immediately in profit or loss as past service cost. 

(iii) Defined contribution plans 

The Company pays provident fund contributions to publicly administered provident funds as per local 
regulations. The Company has not further payment obligations once the contributions have been paid.  

xvi) Trade and other payables 

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior to the end 
of financial year which are unpaid. The amounts are unsecured and are usually paid within the credit 
period allowed. Trade and other payables are presented as current liabilities. 
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xvii) Earnings per share 

Basic and diluted earnings per share 

Basic and diluted earnings per share is calculated by dividing: 

The profit attributable to owners of the Company by the weighted average number of equity share 
soutstanding during the financial year. 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

      

 For Rakesh Mahajan & Associates 

                                  Chartered Accountants, 

                                          (Firm Registration No.011816N) 

 

 

                                                                                                                       (CA .Rakesh  Mahajan)
                                                   Proprietor                             

M.No.090796 

(Gian Chand Dhawan)                      (Ashwani Dhawan)              (Aayush Dhawan)      

Chairman                                          Mg. Director                          Director                         

DIN:00277447                                   DIN:00264986                      DIN:00277485               

       

 

(Jyoti Parihar) 

Company Secretary                           (H.R. Dhawan) 

& Compliance Officer)                       Chief Financial Officer 

 

Place :   Ludhiana                                                   

Date   :   30.06.2021           
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Independent Auditor‟s Report 
 

To The Members of 

York Exports Limited 

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements  

Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of York Exports Limited (―the 
Company‖) and its associate ( the Company and its associate together referred to as ―the Group‖), 
which comprises the consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2021, the consolidated Statement of 
Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the consolidated  statement of  changes in 
equity and the consolidated  statement of cash  flows for the year then ended, and notes to the 
consolidated financial statements including  a summary of the significant accounting policies and other 
explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as ―the consolidated financial statements‖). 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 
aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information required by the   Act  in  the  manner so  
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the  Indian  Accounting  Standards prescribed 
under  section  133  of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as 
amended, (―Ind AS‖) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state 
of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2021, the consolidated profit including  other comprehensive 
income, consolidated changes in equity and consolidated cash flows for the year ended on that date. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit of the consolidated  financial  statements in accordance with the Standards on 
Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are 
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial 
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of 
Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical 
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements under the provisions of 
the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in 
accordance with these requirements and the ICAI‘s Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we 
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the consolidated 
financial statements. 

Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our 
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the 
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, 
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. 

Information other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor‟s Report   thereon 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The 
other information comprises the  information included in the Board's Report including annexures to the 
Board's Report and Management Discussion & Analysis Report, but does not include the consolidated 
financial statements and our auditors' report thereon. The Board's Report including annexures to the 
Board's Report and Management Discussion & Analysis Report is expected to be made available to 
us after the date of this auditors' report. 

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we will 
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the 
other information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the 
other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our 
knowledge obtained during the course of our audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 
When we read the Board's Report including annexures to the Board's Report and Management 
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Discussion & Analysis Report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are 
required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance. 

Responsibility of the Management for the Consolidated Financial Statements 

The Parent Company‘s  Board of  Directors are  responsible  for  the  matters stated in  section 134(5)  of 
the  Act with  respect  to the preparation of these consolidated financial statements that  give  a  true  and  
fair  view  of  the consolidated  financial position, consolidated  financial performance (including other 
comprehensive income),  consolidated changes in equity and consolidated cash flows  of the Group  in  
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the  Accounting Standards 
specified under section 133 of the Act. The respective Board of Directors of the Companies included in the 
Group are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions 
of the  Act for safeguarding  the assets of the Group and for preventing and detecting frauds and other 
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates 
that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal 
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the 
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial  statements 
that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error , 
which have been used for the purpose of the preparation of the consolidated  financial statements by 
the Directors of the Parent  Company, as aforesaid. 

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the Companies 
included in the Group are   responsible for assessing the ability of each company to continue as a going 
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of 
accounting unless management  either intends to liquidate the Company  or to cease operations, or has no 
realistic alternative but to do so. 

The respective Board of Directors of the Companies included in the Group are also responsible for 
overseeing the financial reporting process of the Group. 

Auditor‟s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements 
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor‘s 
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a 
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement 
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or 
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken 
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain 
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

•    Identity and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and 
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk 
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from 
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the 
override of internal control. 

•  Obtain an understanding of internal controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are 
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal 
financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management‘s use of the going concern basis of accounting 
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events 
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the entity‘s ability to continue as a going concern. 
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor‘s 
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures 
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained 
up to the date of our auditor‘s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the entity to 
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cease to continue as a going concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the 
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

• Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or 
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial 
statements. We are responsible for the directions, supervision and performance of the audit of the 
financial statements of such entities included in the consolidated financial statements of which we 
are independent auditors. For the other entities included in the consolidated financial statement, 
which have been audited by other auditors, such other auditors remain responsible for the 
direction, supervision and performance of the audits carried out by them. We remain solely 
responsible for our audit opinion.  

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatement in the consolidated financial statement that, individually 
or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user 
of the consolidated financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and 
qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; 
and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatement in the consolidated financial statements. 

We communicate with those charged with governance of the parent Company of  which we are 
independent auditors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and 
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during 
our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant 
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and 
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, 
related safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters 
that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current 
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report 
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare 
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the 
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest 
benefits of such communication. 

Other Matters 

We did not audit the financial statements of one company being an associate (York Oil & Fats Pvt. 
Ltd.) whose financial statement reflect our share profit of Rs.10.90  lacs (previous year loss of   Rs. 
14.23 lacs) as  considered in the consolidated Financial Statements.  

These Financial Statements have been audited by other auditors whose report  has been furnished to 
us by the Management  and our opinion on the consolidated Financial Statements, in so far as it 
relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of the associate, and our report in terms of 
sub-section (3) of Section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid associate, is based 
solely on the report of the other auditors. 

Our opinion on the consolidated Financial Statements above, and our report on Other Legal and 
Regulatory Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our 
reliance on the work done and the reports of the other auditors. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that: 

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our 
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit. 

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law maintained by the group have been 
kept so far as it appears from our examination of those books. 

c) The consolidated Balance Sheet, the consolidated statement of profit and loss (including Other 
Comprehensive Income), the consolidated statement of changes in Equity and the consolidated 
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statement of cash flow dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of 
account. 

d) In  our  opinion,  the  aforesaid  consolidated  financial  statements  comply with  the  Accounting 
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) 
Rules, 2014. 

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Parent Company as 
on March 31, 2021 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Parent Company and the 
report of statutory auditors of its associate company incorporated in India,   none of the 
directors of the Group companies and its associate company incorporated in India is disqualified as 
on March 31, 2021 from being appointed as   a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act. 

f) ith respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference  
to the consolidated financial statements of the Parent Company and its associate company 
incorporated in India and the operating    effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate 
Report in  “Annexure  A”.  

g) With respect to the other matters to be included  in  the Auditor‘s  Report  in  accordance with  the 
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended: 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 
remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the 
provisions of section 197 of the Act. 

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor‘s Report in accordance with Rule 
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014,  as amended in  our  opinion  and to the  
best of  our  information and according to the explanations given to us: 

i. The consolidated financial statements does not have any pending litigations which would impact 
on the  consolidated financial position of the Company and its associate company. 

ii. The Group did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there 
were any material foreseeable losses. 

iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the 
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company and its associate. 

 

For Rakesh Mahajan & Associates 

Chartered Accountants  

(Firm‘s   Registration No. 011816N) 

 

 

 

(CA. Rakesh Mahajan) 

Proprietor 

  Membership No.090796 

 

 

Place: Ludhiana 

Date: 30.06.2021 
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ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR‟S REPORT 

(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under ‗Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements‘ section 
of our report to the Members of York Exports Limited of even date) 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting under Clause(i) Of Sub-
section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) 
IN conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statement  of the Company as of  and 
for the year ended 31

st
 March 2021 , we have audited the internal financial controls  over 

financial reporting of York Exports Limited ( hereinafter referred to as ―the Company‖) and  its 
associate company which are incorporated in India, as of that date. 

Management‟s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Board of Directors of the Company and its associates  company, which are companies 
incorporated in India , are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls 
based on the internal control over financial reporting  criteria established by the respective 
companies considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on 
Audit of Internal Financ ial Controls Over Financ ial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India(―the ICAI‖). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and 
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that  were operating effectively  for ensuring the 
orderly and efficient conduct  of its business, including adherence to respective company‘s policies, 
the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy 
and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of  reliable financial 
information, as required under the Companies Ac t, 2013. 

Auditor‟s Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over  financial reporting 
of the Company and its associate companies, which are companies incorporated in India ,  based on 
our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal 
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the ―Guidance Note‖) issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) 
of the Companies Ac t, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those 
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial 
controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such  controls operated 
effectively in all material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the 
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our 
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of 
internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness 
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based 
on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor‘s judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to 
fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our audit opinion on the internal financial controls system over financial reporting of the 
Company and its associate company. Which are companies incorporated in India. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

A company‘s internal financial controls over financial reporting is a process designed to provide 
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of 
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles. A company‘s internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies 
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, 
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) 
provide reasonable assurance  that  transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation 
of  financial statements in accordance  with generally ac c epted ac c ounting princ iples, and that 
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations 
of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding 
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prevention  or timely  detection of unauthorised  acquisition,  use, or disposition  of the   
company‘s assets that could have a material effect t on the  financial statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including 
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements 
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the 
internal financial controls over financial reporting  to future periods are subject to the risk that the 
internal financial  controls over  financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes 
in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 
Company and its associates company , which are companies incorporated in India,  has, in all 
material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and 
such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 
2021, based on the internal controls over financial reporting criteria established by the respective 
Companies  considering the essential components of internal controls stated in the Guidance 
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of 
Chartered  Accountants  of India. 

 

For Rakesh  Mahajan & Associates 

Chartered Accountants  

(Firm‘s   Registration No. 011816N) 

 

 

 

(CA.Rakesh  Mahajan) 

Proprietor 

  Membership No.090796 

Place: Ludhiana 

Date: 30.06.2021 



 
YORK EXPORTS LIMITED 

81 

 

 

  



 
YORK EXPORTS LIMITED 

82 

 

 

  



 
YORK EXPORTS LIMITED 

83 

 

 

  



 
YORK EXPORTS LIMITED 

84 

 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31
st

 March, 2021                 

1.   Background 

York Exports Ltd (the ―Company‖) incorporated in 1983 is engaged in the business of Hosiery Knitted 
Garments in India. The company is a public company domiciled in India under the provision of 
companies Act, 1956. Its shares are listed in recognized stock exchange BSE of India. The registered 
office of the company is located in New Delhi. 

2.   Significant accounting policies 

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these 
financial statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless 
otherwise stated. The financial statements are for the Company consisting of York Exports Limited 
(the ‗Company‘). 

v) Basis of Preparation 

Compliance with IndAS 

The financial statements comply in all material aspects with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) 
notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 3 of the Companies (Indian 
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and other relevant provisions of the Act. 

The Financial Statements have been prepared on accrual basis and under historical cost basis, 
except insurance claim and Employee‘s Defined Benefit Plan as per actuarial valuation. 

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current & non-current as per Company‘s normal 
operating cycle and other criteria set out in the schedule III of the Act. 

vi) Foreign currency transaction 

Transaction denominated in foreign currency is recorded at the exchange rate prevailing at the  date 
of transaction. Exchange differences arising on settlement / conversion of foreign currency transaction 
are included in the profit and loss account. 

vii) Revenue recognition 

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivables. Amounts 

disclosed as revenue are net of returns, trade allowances, rebates, discounts, and goods and service 

taxes. 

Sale of goods 

Sales are recognised when substantial risk and rewards of ownership are transferred to customer as 
per the terms of the contract, there is no continuing managerial involvement with the goods. The 
Company retains no effective control of the goods transferred to a degree usually associated with 
ownership and no significant uncertainty exists regarding the amount of the consideration that will be 
derived from the sale of goods. in case of domestic customer, sales take place when goods are 
dispatched or delivery is handed over to transporter. 

Revenue from Services 

Revenue from services is recognised in the accounting period in which the services are rendered. 

viii) Investments (Financial Assets 

Investments are carried at cost and provision is made in the accounts for diminution in the value  of 
investment. 

a)  Initial Recognition 

Investments are initially recognised at cost. 

b)  Classification and Subsequent Measurement: Investment 

The Company classifies investment as subsequently measured at fair value through other 
comprehensive   income (―FVOCI‖) on the basis of following:  

- The entity‘s business model for managing the financial assets and 

- The contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset. 
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c) Impairment of Investments 

Investment other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for indicators of impairment at the end   of    
each reporting period. The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has been a 

significant increase in credit risk. In books such impairment is recorded as diminution in the value of 

investment. 

d)  Investments in associates 

Under Ind AS, Paragraph D14 and D15 of Ind AS 101 permits a first time adopter to elect to continue 
with the carrying value of its investments in associates as recognised in the financial statements as at 
the date of transition to Ind AS, measured as per the previous GAAP. 

v)   Property, Plant and equipment & Intangible assets 

All assets are stated at cost, net of duties and taxes and includes incidental expenses and 
borrowing cost, Less accumulated depreciation and impairment loss if any. 

On transition to Ind AS, the Company has adopted optional exemption under Ind AS 101 to measure  
property, Plant and Equipment at previous GAAP carrying value. Consequently, the previous GAAP 
carrying value has been summed to be deemed cost of Property, Plant and Equipment on the date of 
transition i.e. 1st April, 2016. 

Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value 

Depreciation for the year has been provided on Straight Line Method on the basis of useful lives 
specified in Schedule-II of the Companies Act, 2013. 

vi) Inventories Valuation 

Raw materials, stores and spares and packing materials at cost, work in process at raw materials cost 
plus conversion cost depending on the stage of completion, finished goods at cost  or net realisable 
value whichever is less and waste/damaged goods etc.at estimated realisable value. 

vii) Reorganization of Income & Expenditure  

All incomes and expenditures are accounted for on accrued basis except insurance claims, which are 
being counted for on receipt basis.   

viii) Provisions and Contingent Liabilities 

Provisions are recognised when the company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a 

result of past events., it is possible that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation 
and the amount can be reliably estimated. 

Provisions are measured at the present value of management‘s best estimate of the expenditure 

required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period. 

Contingent liabilities are disclosed by way of Notes to Balance Sheet. Provision is made in the 
accounts in respect of liabilities which are acknowledged by the company and which have material 
effect on the position stated in the balance sheet. 

xi)   Impairment of non-financial assets 

At each balance sheet date, the company reviews the carrying amount of its fixed assets to determine 
whether there is any indication that the assets suffered any impairment loss. If any such indication 
exists, the recoverable amount of the assets is estimated in order to determine the extent of 
impairment of loss. Recoverable amount is higher of the assets net selling price and value in use. In 
assessing value in use, estimated future cash flows expected from the continuing use of the assets 
and from its disposal are discounted to their present value using a pretax discount rate that reflects 
the current market assessment of time value of money and the risks specific to the assets. 

x)    Taxes on Income including Deferred Tax 

Current tax is determined as the amount of tax payable in respect of income for the period.   Deferred 
tax is recognized subject to the consideration of prudence in respect of deferred tax assets, on timing 
differences, being the difference between the taxable income and accounting income that originate in 
one year and are capable of reversal in one or more year. Deferred tax assets are not recognized 
unless there is a sufficient assurance with respect to its reversal in future years. 
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xviii) Borrowing costs 

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or 
production of a qualifying asset are capitalised during the period of time that is required to complete 
and prepare the asset for its intended use or sale. Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily take a 
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale. 

xix) Trade receivables 

Trade receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost 
using the effective interest method less provision for impairment. 

xx)  Cash and cash equivalents 

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes 
cash in hand and other bank balances. 

xxi) Government Grant 

Government Grant received toward specific fixed assets have been deducted from the gross value of 
concerned fixed assets and grant received during the year towards revenue expenditure have been 
reduced from respective expenses or shown as other income. 

xxii) Employee benefits 

       (i) Short term obligations 

Liabilities for wages and salaries, short term compensated absence and ex-gratia including non-
monetary benefits that are expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the period 
in which the employees render the related service are recognised in respect of employees‘ services 
up to the end of the reporting period and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the 
liabilities are settled. The liabilities are presented as current employee benefits obligations in the 
balance sheet. 

Leave encashment - provision for Leave encashment is accounted and provided for at the end of the 
financial year. 

(ii) Post-employment obligations 

The liability or asset recognised in the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit gratuity plans is the 
present value of the defined benefit obligations at the end of the reporting period less the fair value of 
plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by actuaries using the projected unit 
credit method. 

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined 
benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets. This cost is included in employee benefit expenses 
in the statement of profit or loss. 

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial 
assumptions are recognised in the period in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive 
income. They are included in retained earnings in the statement of changes in equity and in the 
balance sheet. 

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from plan amendments or 
curtailments are recognised immediately in profit or loss as past service cost. 

(iii) Defined contribution plans 

The Company pays provident fund contributions to publicly administered provident funds as per local 
regulations. The Company has not further payment obligations once the contributions have been paid.  

xxiii) Trade and other payables 

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior to the end 
of financial year which are unpaid. The amounts are unsecured and are usually paid within the credit 
period allowed. Trade and other payables are presented as current liabilities. 

xxiv) Earnings per share 

Basic and diluted earnings per share 
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Basic and diluted earnings per share is calculated by dividing: 

The profit attributable to owners of the Company by the weighted average number of equity shares     
outstanding during the financial year. 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

      For Rakesh Mahajan & Associates 

                                  Chartered Accountants, 

                                          (Firm Registration No.011816N) 

 

                                                                                               (CA .Rakesh  Mahajan)
                                                   Proprietor                             

M..No.090796 

(Gian Chand Dhawan)                     (Ashwani Dhawan)             (Aayush Dhawan)     

Chairman                                           Mg. Director                           Director         

DIN:00277447                                    DIN:00264986                DIN:00277485      

 

 (Jyoti Parihar) 

Company Secretary                           (H.R.Dhawan) 

& Compliance Officer)                       Chief Financial Officer 

 

Place :   Ludhiana                                                   

Date   :   30.06.2021           
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ATTENDANCE SLIP 

39
th 

Annual General Meeting 

 

Reg. Folio/DP & Client No……………………………………. 

No of Shares Held'……………………………………………….. 

 

I certify that I am a Registered Shareholder/Proxy for the Registered Shareholder of the Company. I 
hereby record my presence at the 39

th.
Annual General Meeting of the Company being held on 

Thursday, 30
th 

day, September, 2021 at S-115, Shakarpur, Delhi- 92 at 09.00A.M.and at any 
adjournment thereof.  

Member's Name: ……………………. 

 

Proxy's Name     : …………………………. …………………… 

Member's/ Proxy's Signature 

Note: 1. please fill this attendance slip and hand it over at the entrance of the Hall. 

2. Members/Proxy Holders/Authorised Representatives are requested to show their Photo ID 
Proof for attending the Meeting. 

       3.  Authorized Representatives of Corporate Member(s) shall produce proper authorization 
issued in theirfavour. 
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Form No. MGT-11 
PROXY FORM 

(Pursuant to Section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules 19(3) of the Companies 
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014)  
 
Name of the member (s): 
Registered Address: 
E.Mail Id ………………………… Folio No. /Client Id ……………….  DP ID ……………. 
 
I/We, being the member(s) holding ………………… shares of the above named Company, hereby 
appoint  
1. Name ……………………………. Address………………. 
Email ID ……………………..Signature……………………. or failing him  

 
2. Name ……………………………. Address………………. 

Email ID ……………………..Signature……………………. or failing him  
Proxy to attend and vote(on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 39

th
 Annual General 

Meeting of the Company to be held on Thursday, 30th day, of September, 2021 at S-115, Shakarpur, 
Delhi- 92 at 09.00 A.M and at any adjournment thereof in respect of such Resolutions as are indicated 
below:  

 Resolutions Optional* 

S. 
No. 

Ordinary Business For Against 

1 To receive, consider and adopt The Audited Financial Statements 
including audited udited Balance Sheet the Statement of Profit & Loss and 
Cash Flow of the Statement of the of the Company for the Financial Year 
ended March 31, 2021 together with the Reports of the of the Board of 
Directors and the Auditors thereon; and The Audited Consolidated ncial 
Financial Statements of the Company for the Financial Year ended March  
of the 31,2021 together with the Report of the Auditors thereon. 

  

2 To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Aayush Dhawan (DIN 00277485) who 
retires by rotation and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment 

  

3 To appoint Auditors and to fix their remuneration   

 Special Business   

4 INCREASE IN REMUNERATION OF MR AAYUSH DHAWAN, 
WHOLETIME DIRECTOR OF THE COMPANY 

  

5 APPROVAL FOR THE CHANGE IN DESIGNATION OF SH. GIAN 
CHAND DHAWAN  

  

6 APPROVAL FOR APPOINTMENT AND INCREASE IN REMUNERATION  
OF SH. ASHWANI DHAWAN AS MANAGING DIRECTOR  

  

 
Affix Revenue stamp 

          
 
Signature of Proxy holder(s)  

Signature of the Shareholder 
Note:  
1. This form of Proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the 

Registered Office of the Company, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the 
Meeting.  

2. For Resolutions, Explanatory Statements and Notes, please refer to the Notice of 39
TH

 Annual 
General Meeting of the Company. 

3. It is Optional to put 'X' in the appropriate column against the Resolutions indicated in the Box. If 
you leave the, 'For' or 'Against' column blank against any or all Resolutions, your Proxy will be 
entitled to vote in the manner as he/she thinks appropriate. 

4 Please complete all details including details of Member(s) in above box before submission. 
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